City and County of Swansea

¢
& Notice of Meeting
~

Cyngor Abertawe You are invited to attend a Meeting of the

Swansea Council

/

Scrutiny Performance Panel — Service Improvement &
Finance

At: Committee Room 5, Guildhall, Swansea

On: Monday, 20 January 2020

Time: 10.00 am

Convenor: Councillor Chris Holley OBE

Membership:
Councillors: P Downing, P R Hood-Williams, L James, M H Jones, P K Jones,
J W Jones, | E Mann, B J Rowlands and D W W Thomas

Agenda
Page No.

1 Apologies for Absence.
2 Disclosure of Personal and Prejudicial Interests.

www.swansea.gov.uk/disclosuresofinterests
3 Minutes and Letters 1-8
4 Public Questions
5 Sustainable Swansea - Fit for the Future: Budget Proposals 9-40

2020/21 — 2023/24
6 Q2 2018/19 Performance Monitoring Report 41 - 96
7 Work Plan 2019/2020 97 - 98

Next Meeting: Wednesday 19 February 2020 at 10.00 am

g .;{/_z;w

Huw Evans
Head of Democratic Services
Monday, 13 January 2020

Contact: Scrutiny 637732


http://www.swansea.gov.uk/disclosuresofinterests

k(/l- Cyngor Abertawe
N\ Swansea Council

j



Agenda Iltem 3

&(//i Cyngor Abertawe

\ Swansea Council
/

To/ g'ggf]ixi'; f;;] Overview & Scrutiny

Councillor Rob Stewart '

Cabinet Member for Economy and B'ﬁ;f bigii:ngyrochok 01792 636292
Strategy (Leader) oMail sruting@swansea.gov.uk
e-Bost:
BY EMAIL bat
Dyddiad: 2 January 2020

Summary: This is a letter from the Service Improvement and Finance Performance
Panel to the Cabinet Member for Economy and Strategy. The letter concerns the
Quarter 2 Budget Monitoring Report and the Mid-year Budget Statement.

Dear Councillor Stewart,

On the 9 December 2019, the Panel met to discuss the Quarter 2 Budget Monitoring
Report and the Mid-year Budget Statement. The Panel are grateful to the Chief
Finance Officer for attending to discuss both reports.

We heard that whilst the Sustainable Swansea Delivery Programme continues to
develop service delivery plans that include savings requirements, the potential
overspend remain a significant risk and needs to be addressed on a whole council
basis.

We heard there is an in-year overspend forecast so Directors will redouble efforts to
bring this down. Overspends are in Education and Social Services. Large inroads
into reducing overspend across the council is expected to show in the Quarter 3
performance data. Chief Finance Officer will seek to balance the budget overall, so
technically there will be a lawfully balanced budget by the end of the year.

In the budget monitoring report it refers, under the section Director of Resources, to
‘stopping or reducing services through new ways of working’, we are interested in
finding out what this might include.

We also want to find out more about the section referring to “16/17 communications
model and Corporate Health and Safety’. Can you tell us why the previously
identified model of merging marketing and communications from across the council
into one team, has not progressed. Also under that same item it refers to the
increase in staff referrals to occupational health, we would be interested to hear
about the reasons why there has been such an increase.

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY / TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU

SWANSEA COUNCIL / CYNGOR ABERTAWE
GUILDHALL, SWANSEA, SA1 4PE / NEUADD Y DDINAS, ABERTAWE, SAL1 4PE

www.swansea.gov.uk / www.abertawe.gov.uk

| dderbyn yr wybodaeth hon mewn fformat arall neu yn Gymraeg, cysylltwch &’r person uchod
To receive this information in alternative format, or in Welsh please contact the above

Page 1


http://www.swansea.gov.uk/
http://www.abertawe.gov.uk/

We asked if the Council was getting to the stage where they cannot take money from
the Insurance Reserve. Are we reaching the finite point in taking out of the
reserves? The Chief Finance Officer said we are covered 90% (of all likely
scenarios) and this is a level considered as prudent.

We discussed the Capital Budget and the 90m borrowing for the implementation of
those issues identified in the Medium Term Financial Plan particularly referring to the
City Deal and the Band B schools programme. We were pleased to hear that the
Chief Finance Officer was able to borrow part of the funding required, £90 million
before the UK Government raised the repayment cost by 50%. The Chief Finance
Officer said to expect a large draw down on this 90m over the coming months to
begin to progress with those projects, as recently agreed by Cabinet.

We are interested in any thoughts you may have on the issues contained in this
letter but can we please have your formal written response to the following issues by
23 January 2020.

1. Can you detail budget reductions relating to each Council Department and
timescales for achieving them? Can you particularly outline your
a. Confidence in Social Services meeting its in year overspend, particularly in
relation to care fees, by the end of the financial year.
b. Confidence in Education meeting its in year overspend by the financial
year-end.
2. Have we reached the position where we cannot put more funding in the capital
reserve fund?
3. You refer in your report to the Director of Resources stopping or reducing service
through new ways of working. Can you tell us what this has or might include?
4. Can you tell us why the previously identified model of merging marketing and
communications from across the council into one team, has not progressed?
5. You refer to an increase in staff referrals to occupational health. Can you tell us
the reasons why there has been such an increase?

Yours sincerely,

»

& ",“1'7‘! Wi {

Councillor Chris Holley
Convener, Service Improvement and Finance Scrutiny Performance Panel
D4 cllr.chris.holley@swansea.qov.uk

Page 2


mailto:cllr.chris.holley@swansea.gov.uk

&(//i Cyngor Abertawe
\ Swansea Council

/

To/ Please ask for: Overview & Scrutiny
. . . Gofynnwch am:
Councillor David Hopkins Direct Line:
Cabinet Member for Delivery and Llinell Uniongyrochol: 01792 636292
Performance e-Mail scrutiny@swansea.gov.uk
e-Bost:
BY EMAIL Dat
D? d%ia g 6 January 2020

Summary: This is a letter from the Service Improvement and Finance Performance
Panel to the Cabinet Member for Delivery and Performance. The letter concerns the
Wales Audit Office Report and response on the effectiveness of local planning
services in Wales and the Planning Annual Performance Report 2018/19.

Dear Councillor Hopkins,

On the 9 December 2019, the Panel met to discuss the Wales Audit Officer Report
and Response on the effectiveness of local planning services in Wales and the
Planning Annual Performance Report 2018/19. The Panel are grateful to you, Phil
Holmes and lan Davies for attending the meeting to discuss these reports.

Wales Audit Office Report and response on the effectiveness of local planning
services in Wales

We heard that the Wales Audit Office report draws four main conclusions. Thank
you for providing us with the detailed action plan designed to address the issues
raised. In summary, you said:

1. Planning Authorities find it challenging to balance competing demands because
of the complexities of the planning system
Council accepts this.

2. Insufficient capacity and reducing capacity are eroding planning local authority
resilience
Council concurs with this Planning has had to live within its means as with every
other council department.

3. Timeliness and quality of decision making varies widely and performance on
managing applications is poor
Do not agree with this as performance has improved in Swansea and fair well on
Welsh Government indicators (it was noted that the Wales Audit Office did not
use the WG indicators to assess this)

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY / TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU

SWANSEA COUNCIL / CYNGOR ABERTAWE
GUILDHALL, SWANSEA, SA1 4PE / NEUADD Y DDINAS, ABERTAWE, SAL1 4PE

www.swansea.gov.uk / www.abertawe.gov.uk

| dderbyn yr wybodaeth hon mewn fformat arall neu yn Gymraeg, cysylltwch &’r person uchod
To receive this information in alternative format, or in Welsh please contact the above

Page 3


http://www.swansea.gov.uk/
http://www.abertawe.gov.uk/

4. Further work is required to deliver the wellbeing aspects of the Planning (Wales)
Act and Planning Policy Wales.
Swansea is ahead of the curve in relation to this because we have recently
adopted the Local Development Plan with these aspects incorporated into it.

We agreed that Audit reports are useful exercises and can assist services by deep
diving into certain aspects but we felt that this did not do that on this occasion. We
heard that this report was based on a small number of in-depth consultations with
some local authorities and then via a questionnaire with the others, including
Swansea. We heard that with most Audit reports, the inspectors come back to
authorities to discuss the outcomes before they are published. This did not happen
with this particular Audit, which we feel was an error, as Planning is a vital part of
Council services and consultation prior to publication would benefitted all parties
concerned. We did share your view that the Audit Report was not reflective of
Planning in Swansea and that it does not show enough technical knowledge to make
assessment useful. The Panel would like to see the Welsh Government’s response
to the report in due course.

In our discussion about the Planning Annual Report, we were pleased to hear that a
lot of work is taking place around wellbeing and biodiversity. We took the
opportunity to raise the issue of capacity in the Nature Conservation Team and its
ability to be able to enforce ecological issues and regulations.

We are interested in any thoughts you may have on the issues contained in this
letter but can we please have a formal written response to the following point by 27
January 2020.

1. What is being done in Swansea to ensure there is capacity to regulate and
ensure ecological constraints are followed?

Yours sincerely,

»

¢ ",“1'7‘! ” LA

Councillor Chris Holley
Convener, Service Improvement and Finance Scrutiny Performance Panel
D4 cllr.chris.holley@swansea.qov.uk

Page 4


mailto:cllr.chris.holley@swansea.gov.uk

City and County of Swansea

Minutes of the Scrutiny Performance Panel — Service
Improvement & Finance

Cyngor Abertawe
Swansea Council  Committee Room 5, Guildhall, Swansea
/
Monday, 9 December 2019 at 10.00 am
Present: Councillor C A Holley (Chair) Presided
Councillor(s) Councillor(s) Councillor(s)
P R Hood-Williams L James M H Jones
P K Jones J W Jones D W W Thomas
Other Attendees
Clir D Hopkins Cabinet Member Environment and Infrastructure
Management
Officers
Phil Holmes Head of Planning and City Regeneration
lan Davies Area Team Leader for Development Management
Ben Smith Chief Finance Officer
Michelle Roberts Scrutiny Officer

Apologies for Absence
Councillor(s): P Downing and B J Rowlands

Disclosure of Personal and Prejudicial Interests.
None

Prohibition of Whipped Votes and Declaration of Party Whips
None

Minutes and Letters

Two items were raised:
1. Query on berthing fees for Swansea Marina.
2. Electricity and Street lighting costs.

The minutes and letters were accepted.

Public Questions
There were no public questions.

Q2 Budget Monitoring 2019/20

The Chief Finance Officer attending the Panel meeting to discuss the Budget
Monitoring Quarter 2 Performance report. The following was noted:

Page 5



Minutes of the Scrutiny Performance Panel — Service Improvement & Finance (09.12.2019)

Cont'd

Whilst the Sustainable Swansea Delivery Programme continues to develop
service delivery plans that include savings requirements, the potential overspend
remains a significant risk and needs to be addressed on a whole council basis.
There is an in-year overspend forecast so Directors will redouble efforts to bring
this down. Overspends in Education and Social Services. Large inroads into
reducing overspend across the council is expected to show in the Quarter 3
performance data

80% of saving achieved, so 20% to find which equates to approximately 4m. If
current savings do not achieve this 20% other mitigations will need to be found.
A number of overspends areas follow on from the outturn position for 2018/19
and need to be considered in savings moving forward.

Corporate Management Team has re-enforced the current arrangements for
budget monitoring.

The Panel heard that offsetting opportunities do exist to temporarily ameliorate
the currently identified service demand and price pressures.

Chief Finance Officer will seek to balance the budget overall, so technically there
will be a lawfully balanced budget by the end of the year.

Contingency Fund Provision for 2019/20 is 7.072 and the potential call on this
were given.

The panel asked about the confidence and ability of Social Services in meeting
overspend relating to fee levels. Also the confidence and ability in reducing the
overspend in Education. Director of Social Services and of Education will be
contacted to give more clarify to these questions.

The Panel asked if the Council was getting to the stage where they cannot take
money from the Insurance Reserve. Are we reaching the finite point in taking out
of the reserves? The Chief Finance Officer said we are covered 90% (of all likely
scenarios) and this is a level considered as prudent.

The issue of VAT was raised and it was noted that there is no certainty of
windfalls from VAT refunds in this current year.

The Capital Budget and the £90m borrowing for the implementation of those
issues identified in the Medium Term Financial Plan was discussed particularly
referring to the City Deal and discussed the Band B schools programme.

The Chief Finance Officer said to expect a large draw down on this £90m over
the coming months to begin to progress with those projects, as recently agreed
by Cabinet.

Mid-year Budget Statement 19/20 (Treasury Management)

This report gave details of the local authority’s investments and cash flows, its
banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of
the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance
consistent with those risks.
The report gave:

o Economic Update — UK and Worldwide

o Review of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Investment

Strategy

o Review of Investment Portfolio 2019/20
Review of Borrowing Strategy
o Review of Debt Strategy

(©]

Page 6



Minutes of the Scrutiny Performance Panel — Service Improvement & Finance (09.12.2019)
Cont'd

o Review of Compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits

e The Council borrowed £90 million pounds before the UK Government raised
repayment cost by 50% without any notice. This Loan will help finance the
Swansea Central Phase 1 The timing of this decision has saved the council a
large amount in repayment costs.

e A further £90m will need to be borrowed to finance the Band B Schools
Programme the Council has made a commitment to.

e Commercial capital spend was also discussed and how some local authorities
are purchasing property to bring in commercial revenue. The Chief Finance
Officer said that Swansea borrowing for such things must be proportionate and
have more than one driver other than simply increasing commercial revenue, like
being part of our economic development and place shaping strategy.

Wales Audit Office Report and Response - The effectiveness of local planning
authorities in Wales

The Wales Audit Office carried out a review of the effectiveness of Local Planning
Authorities in Wales in 2018/19. The Head of Planning and City Regeneration and
the Area Team Leader for Development Management attended the meeting to
discuss the report.

The Wales Audit Officer report drew four main conclusions, a full action plan was

presented to the panel and the points of the discussion were noted as follows:

1. Planning Authorities find it challenging to balance competing demands because
of the complexities of the planning system
Council accepts this.

2. Insufficient capacity and reducing capacity are eroding planning authorities
resilience
Council concurs with this Planning has had to live within its means as with every
other council department.

3. Timeliness and quality of decision making varies widely and performance on
managing applications is poor
Do not agree with this as performance has improved in Swansea and fair well on
Welsh Government indicators (it was noted that the Wales Audit Office did not
use the WG indicators to assess this)

4. Further work is required to deliver the wellbeing aspects of the Planning (Wales)
Act and Planning Policy Wales
Swansea is ahead of the curve in relation to this because we have recently
adopted the Local Development Plan so these aspects are incorporated into it.

e The Panel heard that that Audit reports are useful exercises and can assist
services by deep diving into certain aspects. Although this report did not do that,
it was based on a small number of in depth consultations with some authorities
and via questionnaires with the majority of authorities, including Swansea. With
most Audit reports, the inspectors come back to authorities to discuss outcomes
before it is published. This did not happen with this particular audit.

e The panel did agree that the Audit Report was not reflective of Planning in
Swansea and that it does not show enough technical knowledge to make
assessment useful. The Panel would like to see the Welsh Government’s
response to the report in due course. Officers to supply when available.

Page 7



Minutes of the Scrutiny Performance Panel — Service Improvement & Finance (09.12.2019)

Cont'd

Planning Annual Performance Report 2018/19

The Head of Planning and City Regeneration and the Area Team Leader for
Development Management attended the meeting to discuss the Planning Annual
Performance Report 2018/19. The following was noted:

The Planning Annual Performance Report is a mechanism used by Welsh
government for monitoring Local Planning Authority performance against a key
set of national performance indicators and as a means of driving its agenda for
modernising the planning system in Wales.

The Cabinet Member thanked Planning Committee Councillors for their work over
the past year.

The Panel agreed that the Special Planning Guidance for Houses in Multiple
Occupation will be a help in guiding planning in how they move forward in this
area, will back up the decisions of the Planning Committee.

Heard that Planning work closely with partners and consult fully. The planning
process is now more streamlined and speeds up process.

Call-in for Planning is very difficult. Clir Holley and Cabinet Member Cllr Thomas
to discuss this further.

A lot of work is taking place around wellbeing and diversity.

Panel expressed concerns about Welsh Government over riding local decisions
in appeals...therefore overriding local views.

Capacity of the Nature Conservation Team to enforce around ecological issues
and regulations was raised. The Panel will ask the Cabinet Member in the
Conveners letter ‘what is being done to ensure there is capacity to regulate and
ensure ecological constraints are followed’.

Work Plan 2019/20

The Panel were informed that a tentative meeting date of the 26 February has been
arranged for the budget to complete pre-decision scrutiny on the Sustainable
Swansea — Fit for the Future Budget Proposals.

The meeting ended at 11.30 am

Page 8



Agenda Iltem 5

¢
S

Cyngor Abertawe
Swansea Council

B i

Report of the Leader and Cabinet Member for Economy & Strategy

Special Cabinet — 9 January 2020

Sustainable Swansea - Fit for the Future:
Budget Proposals 2020/21 — 2023/24

Purpose: To consider budget proposals for 2020/21 to
2023/24 as part of the Council’s existing Budget
Strategy.

Policy Framework: Medium Term Financial Plan and Budget

Sustainable Swansea — Fit for the Future

Consultation: Cabinet Members, Corporate Management Team,

Legal, Finance, Access to Services

Recommendation(s): It is recommended that Cabinet:

1)

Approves the Budget proposals summarised in the report and detailed in
Appendix B as the basis of consultation

2) Adopts the updated budget future forecast as the starting planning
premise for the new medium term financial plan, which will be considered
by Council on 5" March 2020.

3) Agrees the approach to consultation and engagement with staff, trade
unions, residents, partners and other interested parties set out in Section
7 of the report

4) Receives a report on the outcome of the consultation and final budget
proposals at its meeting on 20" February 2020.

Report Authors: Ben Smith

Finance Officer: Ben Smith

Legal Officer: Tracey Meredith

Access to Services Rhian Millar

Officer:

Page 9




1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

Introduction

This report updates Cabinet on its budget proposals for budget savings for
consultation with residents, community groups and other stakeholders. It
has full and due regard to our duties under the Well-being of Future
Generations Act 2015.

Sustainable Swansea - fit for the future was approved by Council on 22
October 2013 and subsequently reviewed by Cabinet on 16" July 2015. It
remains the Council’s current overarching approach to budget and
medium term financial planning, to help deliver the well-being of future
generations. It is planned to launch a major refresh and review of the
strategy, whilst likely retaining its core principles, during 2020 to develop
the next phase and iteration of the strategy for future years.

Since then, the Council, in line with the principles contained within
Sustainable Swansea, has developed its approach to reviewing services
and budget proposals through a series of commissioning reviews, which
have set out an assessment of individual services, scope for change,
alternative delivery models and potential savings and improvements that
could be made.

In September 2019, the Chancellor of the Exchequer presented the
Spending Round 2019 to Parliament. This was originally intended to be
an in depth multi-year review of departmental spend, however due to the
uncertainties surrounding Brexit, it became a one year only review. A full
multi-year review will now follow in 2020. The review included the
announcement that no department would receive cuts for 2020/21. The
consequential for Wales was be an increase of £600m, including
increases for Social Care, Local Government and Education.

Due to the General Election held on 12" December, the Welsh
Government delayed its announcements on the budget and provisional
settlement until 16" December 2019. This made the budget process
extremely challenging and uncertain to say the least. Equally, however,
the now known scale of funding increase for local government for 2020-21
(the best in over a decade) is clearly extremely helpful and of a different
magnitude to recent settlements and enables much greater choice to be
exercised over relative priorities, funding commitments and local taxation
levels for 2020-21. It is hoped that this change of emphasis and funding
can now begin to be sustained over the medium to longer term to allow the
Council to not only maintain, but develop, and extend vital services to the
public.

Final figures for 2020/21 and any potential announcements on future year
implications are expected from Welsh Government on 25" February 2020
(the date of the Welsh Government final proposed budget).

Now that a new national government has been formed, much will clearly
hinge on the next UK wide budget and Comprehensive Spending Review

2
Page 10



1.7.

2.1

2.2.

2.3.

in 2020, and what funding flows to the Welsh Government, to ultimately
flow to councils and other public bodies.

This report covers:

e A reminder about the key elements of Sustainable Swansea and an
update on progress

e An overview of service and budget priorities for the current and
following three years

e An update on the financial challenge facing the Council

The proposed savings programme, including specific proposals for

2020/21 and three future years, upon which we now need to consult

The key risks associated with the current financial position

Proposals for engagement and consultation

Staffing implications

Delivery and next steps

Background — Sustainable Swansea — fit for the future

The scale of the financial, demographic and sustainability challenge
requires the Council to continue to adopt a radically different approach to
previous years. An approach that focuses on:

e The core future purpose of the Council

e The transformation of services and the model of delivery

e Greater collaboration with other councils and local organisations,
community groups and residents

e And, above all, sustainable solutions with prevention at its heart

This ambition is set out in Sustainable Swansea — fit for the future, our
current long-term plan for change, underpinned by our Innovation
Programme. A major refresh will be undertaken in 2020 recognising that
whilst it has successfully delivered the bulk of £70m worth of savings
asks, during a period of prolonged austerity, enabling the Council to
maintain services, performance levels and protect jobs, there are new
challenges and opportunities arising from the new Local Government and
Elections (Wales) Bill as well as a changing national political landscape
and economic uncertainty including Brexit risks.

The Strategy was agreed by Cabinet and reported to Council in October
2013. The Delivery Programme was approved by Cabinet on 29 July 2014
and was subject to further review and refresh at Cabinet on 16" July 2015.

It is important that we continue to use the narrative in all our
communication and that we apply the budget principles across all our
thinking. The budget principles are reflected in the proposals set out in
this report.

Since the July 2015 meeting of Cabinet we have:

Page 11



2.4.

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

e Continued to work on the delivery of the Savings Programme

e Commenced and delivered the first two phases of Service
commissioning Reviews

¢ Identified our next phase of cross cutting reviews

These actions are covered in more detail in sections 5 and 7 below.
Our Service Priorities for 2020/21 and Beyond

Although the Council is currently focused on its plan, as set out in the
existing MTFP, to save around £63m over the next three years (since
significantly revised down — see below), it is vital that we continue to retain
Member and management focus on the significant proportion of our
budget that will remain. Our gross budget is over £700m (excluding
Housing Services (HRA)) and we spend just under £1.7m a day on
services to residents (this excludes benefits in kind such as housing
benefit and the council tax reduction scheme).

The Council has clear and strong long-term ambitions for Swansea and
the proposals for savings must be seen in the context of the following:

e The Council’s top 6 priorities and future plans for services to help
deliver the well-being of future generations

e The core objectives of Sustainable Swansea — which embrace all
that we do

e The application of budget principles — which guide decision making

e The ongoing and sustained real terms reduction in external funding
and the need to meet known budget pressures.

The Council’s overall aim is to protect frontline delivery of services as far
as possible. However, whilst many things are important, not everything
can be a priority. It is important, therefore (particularly in the current
climate of significantly reduced resources), that we set out clearly our
expectations on all services and relative priorities for funding in the context
of the budget reductions that we face.

This requirement is illustrated sharply by the “gearing” effect of savings on
services. In other words, if our current savings requirement of £63m
(since significantly revised down — see below) over three years were
applied, for example, just to Resources (excluding Council Tax Reduction
Scheme) and Place Services, the budgets for these areas would have to
be almost cut in their entirety. Consequently, other areas such as
Education and Social Care also need to face some relative real terms level
of reduction over the next three years, given the relative size of their
budgets. Equally, however, if the level of likely funding for 2020-21 were to
be sustained in every future year then these planning assumptions could
be very fundamentally reshaped and savings asks reduced or possibly
even eliminated.

Page 12



3.5. A statement of budget priorities and policy statements that flow from this is
set out in Appendix A. This statement follows an assessment of services
in relation to the following criteria:

e Invest: those Services where the Council will increase current
levels of investment

e Maintain: those services where the Council will broadly maintain
current level of spend in the medium term

e Remodel: those services where the Council will reduce the current
level of spend over the medium term

Regardless of relative funding levels, there is an absolute requirement that
all services must transform and strive for maximum efficiency.

3.6. Based on the statement of priorities and having regard to the “gearing
effect” when considering savings, the suggested percentage reduction
remains as agreed last year and is set out in Table 1 below (and

Appendix B):
Table 1 — Indicative Targets
Percentage Previous Actual
Service Reduction/increase | pjanning change
over 4 Years at A " 19/20
constant prices* ssumption 1 year A
Schools -15% 0% +2.5%
Education (excluding -15% -15% -4.0%
Schools)
Social Care — Child & -15% -15% +7.0%
Families
Social Care- Adults -10% -20% +3.6%
Poverty & Prevention” See below See below See below
Place -30% -50% -0.6%
Resources -15% -50% +9.3%

*Actual budgets will be set based on shares of service pressures,
inflationary pressures and investment and specific savings decisions

A The actual change column reflects both budget reductions and
pressures for one year only: the planning assumptions for future years
reflect only reductions. In practice there are usually as many pressures
funded and investment decisions made, as reductions, and
consequently headline budgets move markedly less than the planning
assumption would appear to imply.

Page 13



3.7.

4.1.

4.2.

“In 2019-20 a more integrated approach between social services and
poverty and prevention was undertaken as the functions merged their
core activities and this saw significant redirection and reallocation of
resources to seek to maximise prevention and early intervention and
ultimately bear down on overall costs. Effectively the budget is
managed as a whole as part of Social Services.

This will now be materially revised in light of the significant uplift
in funding received from the Welsh Government (£17m) and it is
envisaged similarly, no service will receive an overall reduction in
cash budgets for next year. Planning assumptions over future
year settlements, building on from this year’s material uplift, will
very significantly affect these existing planning assumptions,
once the review, renewal and relaunch of the successor to
Sustainable Swansea is completed during early 2020. These
assumptions are themselves heavily dependent upon the
Comprehensive Spending Review, national government’s overall
approach to public spending, the Welsh Government’s priorities
and the consequences of Brexit, all of which substantially add to
the risks facing future financial planning assumptions.

This statement will form the basis of our future medium term financial plan,
as well as individual service plans. Notwithstanding this broad target
savings range, where it is appropriate to do so, and as set out specifically
in this report, additional targeted investment in to priority areas will
also occur. This is possible because of the significant increase in funding
set out in the Welsh Government’s 2020-21 budget proposals. Whilst this
first phase of consultation necessarily focuses on what may need to be
reduced and re-prioritised, the main budget proposals in February and
March, once the final settlement is known, and initial consultation is
concluded, will enable, substantial net cash investment into services. This
will particularly focus on prevention, early intervention and investment for
the future in line with the well-being of future generations’ principles and
objectives.

Financial Update

The financial update that follows needs to be seen in the context of the
Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) approved by Council on 28®
February 2019.

The indicative savings requirement for the 2020/21 budget and the
existing MTFP for the two years, 2021/22 to 2022/23, has been updated
and set out in Table 2 below. This table also includes the forecast for one
further year, 2023/24, as the MTFP now rolls forward one year:

Page 14



Table 2 — Indicative Savings Requirement for 2020/21 to 2023/24

Budget Medium Term Financial
Plan
Note | 2020/21 | 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023/24
£000 £000 £000 £000
Future cost of pay awards 1
- Non Teachers 5100| 10,200 | 15,300 | 20,400
- Teachers (local top up element) 2,699 6,400 | 10,100 13,600
National Living Wage — own pay 2 900 1,400 1,400 1,400
bill
National Living Wage — contracts 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000
Increase in Pension Costs 3 0 0 0 0
Increased Teachers Pension costs 4 2,069 2,069 2,069 2,069
(local top up element)
Cumulative contract inflation 5 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000
Capital charges — existing 6 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750
Capital charges - new scheme 7 2,000 4,000 5,250 6,500
aspirations
Capital charges — expected 7 -350 -650 -850 -850
savings as a result of increased
grants and thus reduced borrowing
— general capital and Band B
schools
MRP review linked to capital 8 381 747 1,097 1,434
programme
Use of Capital Equalisation 9 0 -196 -1,393 -2,209
Reserve to Capital Charges Impact
Reinstate Temporary Use of 10 700 700 700 700
Insurance Reserve
Demographic and Service 11 6,000 8,000 | 10,000 12,000
pressures
Mid and West Wales Fire authority 12 800 1,200 1,600 2,000
Levy (independently decided by
the Fire Authority)
Council Tax Support Scheme 13 1,100 2,300 3,500 4,700
Service pressures previously 14 665 1,180 695 695
accepted
New service pressures accepted 14 5,753 8,603 | 11,408 | 13,808
Passported through AEF to 14 901 901 901 901
Services — Teachers Pay
Passported through AEF to 14 2,931 2,931 2,931 2,931
Services — Teachers Pensions
Passported through AEF to 14 151 151 151 151
Services — NHS Funded Nursing
Care
Total known pressures 35,550 55,686 72,609 89,980
Aggregate External Finance 5] -17,270] -23,900 | -30,900 | -38,000
increase
Total Savings Requirement 16 18,380 31,786 | 41,709 | 51,980
7

Page 15




Notes:

oo

10.

11.

12.

The pay award figures represent a forecast increase of 2.75% for the
period of the MTFP for teachers and non-teachers. The estimated
increased cost for Teachers is £3.6m per annum, this value is the gap
between the amount provided by the Welsh Government in the
settlement and the estimated cost, which will have to be funded
locally.

Assumed increases due to implementation of National Living Wage -
will affect contract prices and lower end of own pay scale.

The costs arising from the triennial revaluation of the local government
pension scheme were previously included at an assumed 1% per
annum increase. The next revaluation will take effect from 15t April
2020 and the likelihood is that no increase will be needed during the
period covered by this MTFP.

The Teachers’ Pension Scheme (TPS) increased in 2019/20 due to a
reduction in the discount rate per HMT - TPS rises from 16.48% to an
estimated 23%. This has been partially funded in the settlement by the
Welsh Government, the value shown here is the gap that will need to
be funded locally.

Reflects the assumed minimum cumulative effect of contract inflation.
The additional estimated borrowing costs because of the current
Capital programme together with potential increases arising from
externalisation of borrowing due to cashflow requirements.

The initial additional estimated borrowing costs for the delivery of the
major aspirational capital programme. The recent announcement by
the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) of an increase to the interest
rate offered to Councils will only have a limited effect on this forecast.
The MRP policy was reviewed and agreed by Council at its meeting of
20t December 2018, this is the effect of the re-profiling, which should
last for the term of the MTFP, having due regard to the scale of new
borrowing. Longer term costs will INCREASE not REDUCE.

The net effect of both 7 and 8 is, that taken in conjunction with sums in
the Capital Equalisation Reserve, that there will be no net revenue
cost pressure over the lifetime of this Council (i.e. before 2022).
Cabinet have prudently built up a capital equalisation reserve to
reduce the impact of increased capital charges in respect of new
scheme aspirations, and some use of this reserve, in line with agreed
limits, is now being built into the budget.

The 2017/18 budget report agreed an annual take from the insurance
reserve on a temporary basis, after which the use of the reserve will
need to be re-instated. This is now extended until 2022/23, which the
Section 151 Officer considers reasonably prudent having due regard
to the latest insurance valuation advice received.

Assumed Demographic and Service pressures mainly around Schools
and Adult and Children’s Services.

Estimated Fire Authority Levy increase — the final figure won'’t be
known until January/February when the independent Fire Authority
determines its levy requirement. However, early indications are that
the levy could rise by between 6% and 10%. Included above is the
most likely scenario of 6.3% for 2020/21, 3% thereafter. Cabinet may

8
Page 16



4.3.

4.4.

wish to note the Standard Spending Assessment funding for Fire
services in this authority is £10.5m, the actual levy is currently £13.0m.

13. The assumed cost of Council Tax Support Scheme costs based on
Council Tax increases as a planning assumption only at this stage.

14. Individual service pressures accepted. Previously agreed pressures
have reduced since the published MTFP due to the assumption of
Social Services Grant falling out changing to the grant continuing.

15. Specific funding for services transferred by the Welsh Government as
part of the settlement figure.

16. Provisional guideline assumption for 2020/21 and future years, this
has been confirmed in the provisional settlement as an increase of
5.5% (4.2% after technical adjustments) for 2020/21, and there is a
now assumed increase of 2% for future years.

17. The exemplified savings target of £52m shown in Table 2 is indicative
of the scale of savings required and will be revised as the 3 year
MTFP progresses

Fundamental central assumptions have been made in deriving this table.
The most significant is a central assumption that future funding from
Welsh Government increases by 2% per annum beyond 2020-21. This is
considered by the Section 151 Officer to be a reasonably prudent
assumption. Previous planning assumptions have been as low as 0%.
The provisional one off settlement for 2020-21 is a 5.5% headline
increase. The compounding effect of this key assumption is substantial
over the life of the MTFP (the savings ask could be higher, lower, or even
fully eliminated) as can be illustrated below:

Increase in future year Reduction Positive
block grant finance | (Increase) in gap in | (negative) Impact
assumptions in the MTFP one year | over life of MTFP
£000 £000
0% - original MTFP (6,700) (20,800)
assumption
2% - current central 0 0
assumption
3% - possible scenario 6,700 20,800
4% - possible scenario 13,500 41,700
5.5% - continued at current 18,600 57,400
headline uplift

Over recent years the Council has consistently prioritised the delegated
schools budget, previously meeting its guaranteed funding requirement
over a five year period. There is now no formal ongoing ministerial
protection or funding guarantee so any decision over schools funding is a
local one to be made by Cabinet and ultimately by Council, having due
regard to any budget consultation responses received. Education will
continue to be the biggest area of funding within the council’s revenue
budget and will continue to be a key priority for the Council.

Page 17



4.5.

4.6.

4.7.

It should be noted that although the headline block grant has increased
very substantially for 2020/21 in reality the grant needs to rise by nearly
£7m to simply cover the pressures caused by specific grants potentially
falling out. These are as per Table 3 below:

Table 3 — Specific Grants Falling Out

Grant £000
Teachers pensions 19/20 - part year — given as RSG transfer 3,000
Teachers pensions 20/21 - remainder — expected — and to be 2,000
funded from RSG increase
Teachers pay 18/19 & 19/20 top up grant - rest already in 555
RSG (Revenue Support Grant)
Professional learning - teachers 1,069
Total 6,624

Only some of these have been specifically funded in the provisional
settlement, the rest will need to be considered for funding from the overall
headroom created by the significant overall increase in funding.

Whilst the substantial increase in funding from the Welsh Government is
very much welcomed, it should be noted that this Council still (even after
the increase) faces a funding gap of £18.4m.

With respect to the Current and Future Capital Programme, it is clear at
the present time that future support from the Welsh Government in respect
of general capital grant and supported borrowing on an annual basis is
likely to remain curtailed. It is likely however that substantial top up capital
grants will be released and this Council will actively pursue opportunities
to access all such grants.

The current year allocation in respect of both of the above elements is just
over £12.5m. This is because the Welsh Government increased the total
sum available to Authorities by £100m over 3 years, but reducing each
year. Further one off increases and top up capital grants do remain a
distinct possibility beyond those set out in the provisional settlement but
with a further increase for 2020/21 the provisional allocation for 2020/21
for Swansea is £12.984m. This allocation is only just sufficient to meet the
current budgets allocations to cover core commitments as in Table 4
below:

10
Page 18



4.8.

4.9.

4.10.

4.11.

4.12.

4.13.

Table 4 — Capital Allocations for 2020/21 assuming spend maintained

£'m
Provisional Welsh Government funding 12.984
Allocation - property and highways maintenance -7.400
Disabled Facilities Grants & Improvement Grants -5.200
Additional 0.384

The remaining capital programme (including improvements to schools) is
heavily dependent on future capital receipts and, to that extent, any
shortfall in receipts is likely to require an increase in unsupported
borrowing to balance the funding for the agreed programme.

Any rise in borrowing has a potentially detrimental effect on future revenue
funding, and thus on future generations, and has to be fully planned for.

As such, it is inevitable that the future capital programme will have to be
subject to regular review and will be dependent on receipt of specific grant
and/or the availability of excess capital receipts.

The currently approved four-year capital programme assumes additional
unsupported borrowing of some £59m. This has been materially added to
in year with the approval of Swansea Central Phase 1.

In particular, and in direct contrast, further detailed consideration will also
have to be given in respect of likely future commitments to, and funding
options for, the second phase of the proposed Schools improvement
programme, continued investment in the City Centre and the funding
requirements that will flow from the Swansea Bay City Region proposals.
All of which will benefit not only current, but also future generations. The
initial impacts of new additional unsupported borrowing are reflected in
Table 2 above, but are ultimately expected to peak at nearer an additional
£12m per annum over the longer term (by around 2025-26). These longer-
term costs beyond the life of the MTFP will have to be accommodated.

Given the level of overall revenue resources and the scale of the new
investment ask over the extended medium term for new capital and the
benefits to be felt by future generations the Section 151 officer considered
it appropriate to review all the options around changing the Council’s
Minimum Revenue Provision policy both for past and future investment.
Council agreed a report on this on 20" December 2018 and the impact of
the recommendations is reflected in Table 2 above. This has reduced the
revenue costs in the medium term and increases them longer term, but
crucially better match the future costs to the future benefits of that
investment. This is entirely in line with the principles of the Well-being
of Future Generations Act.

11
Page 19



4.14.

4.15.

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

Furthermore it should be noted that appropriate use of the Capital
Equalisation Reserve will be recommended for use in determining the final
shape of the overall budget in line with the principles agreed by previous
Cabinet and Council decisions. This is designed to ensure that any
immediate short term costs of financing Swansea Central Phase 1 is
neutralised and thus has no direct impact on other service revenue
budgets as more time is taken to adjust to the overall scale of capital
spending. This allows a more gradual move towards the longer term
financing costs as fully set out in the medium term financial plan.

It should also be noted that whilst there is an assumption that any
additional borrowing costs in relation to the Schools’ capital programme
could be funded via the delegated budget in the absence of Capital
Receipts. This is not reflected in current budget proposals (i.e. they are
currently predicated to be continue to be funded by the Council as a
whole).

Budget Proposals

Budget proposals to meet the current savings requirement for 2020/21
consist of the following elements:

Funding fully passported in the settlement

Service Pressures funded

Continuation and development of service delivery savings

Commissioning review identified savings

Other elements of the Sustainable Swansea Delivery Programme

approved by Cabinet particularly around cross cutting themes

e A substantial cash increase in Schools Delegated Budgets to meet
cost pressures faced

e Substantial additional targeted new cash investment into Place,
Resources, Education and Social Services

e Recommendations from the Reshaping Board

Each of these categories are addressed below.
Funding changes in the settlement passport through to services

It has been the practice in previous years to passport through to services
any specific sums provided for in the settlement. This intention remains in
place and has happened with, for example, the Teachers’ Pension
funding.

Further Service pressures

As well as the continuation of funding for specific service pressures that
were agreed as part of the 2019/20 budget setting process, the following
additional pressures have been identified in respect of:

e Provision to increase base budget funding for the contingency fund

12
Page 20



5.4.

5.5.

5.6.

e Short term costs of transferring to Oracle Cloud

e Additional Learning Needs — increased costs following legislation

e Various Education Service cost pressures

e Removal of some previously agreed savings proposals that have
proven undeliverable.

Service investment

Material service investment requirements have been identified in respect
of:
e Education service pressures in respect of the implications of the
Additional Learning Needs Act.
e Social care demography
e Local priorities and choices

Service Savings
Service savings requirements have been identified in respect of 2020/21
resulting in the summarised position as set out in Table 6. The detailed

list of savings is set out in Appendix B:

Table 6 — Review of Planned Savings 2020/21

Proposed savings
2020/21
£000

Cross Cutting Items 194
Place 2,302
Social Services (including 3,959
Poverty & Prevention)

Education (excluding schools)* 2,369
Resources 881
Sub-total (per Appendix B) 9,705
Schools* 0
Total 9,705

*Schools savings and pressures fall entirely to the delegated budgets and
are shown separately as these are decisions for schools to take

Sustainable Swansea

As set out in section 2 above, through Sustainable Swansea, the Council
is committed to changing the design and delivery of services and to a
fundamentally different approach to demand management and early
intervention.

13
Page 21



5.7.

5.8.

In particular, the Council has previously embarked on a series of
commissioning reviews across all services and the results of a number of
those commissioning reviews have been presented to Cabinet and agreed
over the past few years.

Outcomes of further commissioning reviews are expected on a recurring
basis and, where specific outcomes require, full consultation and
engagement take place before any actions are delivered.

It is anticipated, in line with the principles previously established, that
where outcomes from reviews are presented then consultation and action
to implement will be undertaken on a rolling basis outside the normal
budget cycle.

The Sustainable Swansea — Fit for the Future programme is reviewed
annually in parallel with budget setting in order to:

e Report on and close those projects that have delivered

e Incorporate changes from the internal and external environment,
which may be either emerging or long term priorities that will impact
the Council’s sustainability

e Evaluate all projects and make appropriate changes, e.g. where
legislation, new thinking / models, changes in the Corporate Plan or
Local Well-being Plan, or changes from the external environment
influence the original scope, therefore the project needs to change /
morph

e Incorporate priorities emerging from annual budget discussions
between Senior Management and Members, as well as any
changes in the revised MTFP

e Review lessons learned with stakeholders (e.g. Welsh Audit Office
(WAO), Welsh Government, partners and many other stakeholders)
and incorporate learning into the next phase.

As 2020/21 marks the fifth year of implementation of the programme,
this year's review takes stock of the original strategy principles and
framework. The review is analysing outcomes and impact; reflecting on
previous annual review reports; WAO reviews; and feedback from
stakeholders including project leads. A major refresh and relaunch will
occur in 2020.

These proposals are fully delivered within the context of Sustainable
Swansea and can be alternatively summarised in Table 7 as follows:

14
Page 22



5.9.

5.10.

5.11.

5.12.

5.13.

Table 7 — Budget Proposals 2020/21

Savings Savings
2020/21
£m

Savings type Workforce 906
Other spending 3,176
Income 2,525
Mixed (workforce, income, other) 3,098
Savings Total as per Appendix B 9,705

For delivery purposes, all proposals that are approved, after considering
the outcome of consultation and Equality Impact Assessments, will be
combined into a single delivery tracker with progress updated monthly by
the Head of Service accountable for delivery.

Schools’ Delegated Budgets

The indicative savings assessments set out in Table 1 at 3.6 above and
Appendix A, show that it is inevitable, given the scale of reductions
required within the one education budget, that ongoing consideration will
have to be given to the current level of schools’ delegated budgets.

Budget movements can be viewed in two ways:

e Actual cash increases in levels of funding provided to Schools

e Real terms reduction in Schools funding, taking into account known
spending needs, as previously advised and shared with the Schools
Budget Forum.

For current consultation purposes it is intended that there will be a
proposed 6.5% (£9.7m) cash increase in schools core funding (excluding
Pupil Deprivation Grant and Post 16 funding changes which comes
separately from Welsh Government), which is a considerably better
position than the 5.5% cash change in this Council’s provisional funding
from Welsh Government.

This is predominantly to fund teachers’ pay and pensions costs in schools
that the Council can reasonably afford, in light of the cash increase in its
own funding from Welsh Government.

However, it is clear that a number of budget pressures detailed in Table 2
in Section 4.2 of this report include pressures that will fall directly to the
delegated budget. These are estimated as:-

15
Page 23



5.14.

5.15.

Table 8 — Main Pressures on Schools Delegated Budgets

Identified budget pressure in schools 2020/21
£000
Schools pay award 3,600
Share of increased LGPS costs 0
Increased teachers’ pension costs — now funded 5,000
by UK and Welsh governments via RSG
Fall out of Teachers Pay Grant 2019/20 550
Demographics (increased pupil numbers) and 600
other cost pressures (e.g. non domestic rates)
Total 9,750
Change from Council budget as proposed 2020/21
£000
Pressures 9,750
Net savings required from schools 0
Total net budget increase proposed - schools 9,750

Education will continue to be biggest area of funding within the council’s
revenue budget and will continue to be a key priority for the council.

Cabinet will have to consider what actual overall funding is proposed in
respect of the Schools delegated budget following consultation with all
head-teachers at a meeting on 14" January 2020. This will be presented
back to Cabinet as part of the overall consultation report.

For the past few years, there has been no ministerial funding guarantee
for schools explicit in the provisional revenue settlements. The provisional
settlement does make clear however that the cost pressures in schools
are definitively recognised by Welsh Government and were a material
factor in the overall settlement.

Recognising previous policy commitments, it is also intended that any
other specific cash increase for schools in the final settlement, once
confirmed, will be passported through as targeted additional investment in
schools delegated budgets.

It is recognised that even with that potential level of investment that
schools, like all services, face significant real pressures in the medium to
longer term.

Total Proposals

The total net savings across the areas outlined above are shown in Table
9 below:

16
Page 24



5.16.

5.17.

5.18.

6.1.

Table 9 — Proposals for 2020/21

Net
Savings Savings

£m
Service Savings (as per Appendix B) 9,705
Total Service Savings (as per Appendix B) 9,705
Schools savings 0
Council tax income (Including assumptions on 8,675
premia)
Council pressures -18,380
Meeting the Total Savings Requirement 0

The detailed proposals are set out in Appendix B. Subject to Cabinet
approval, consultation will commence on the proposals, as appropriate,
with staff, Trade Unions, Schools’ Budget Forum, residents, affected
groups and partners, alongside Equality Impact Assessments (EIAS).

Other Savings and Funding Options

The current total of all savings proposals for 2020/21 is £9.705m, against
the current total requirement of £18.380m (including Schools pressures).
The current assumption is that the gap will be met by an increase in
Council Tax of £8.675m. This will meet the budget requirement. Work will
continue over the next two months up to Cabinet in February 2019 to
assess a range of options. This is necessary because:

e Some proposals may not be approved following the outcome of
consultation and Equality Impact Assessments

e Additional savings are required as a contingency against non-
delivery of some savings in year

e Some services may need additional investment, which will be
decided following consultation.

e Final Council Tax levels may be lower (or higher) than the
assumptions in this report.

This assessment will include a review of other service savings and our
policy on Council Tax. It should be noted that the Welsh Government has
made an assumption of Council Tax increases of 7.1% in its standard
spending assessment.

Assessment of Risks and Uncertainties
As in previous years, the budget proposals as presented must be viewed

in the context of the ongoing risks and uncertainties that the Council faces
during 2020/21 and beyond:

17
Page 25



6.2.

These currently include:

a)

b)

d)

f)

9)

h)

)

Equal pay claims: The risk at the present time is residual.

Pay and grading appeals: it is assumed, as in previous years, that
costs arising out of pay and grading appeals will be met from within
Directorate approved budgets and schools delegated budgets where
appropriate.

Specific grants: It is possible that, based on experience in 2019/20,
the Council could suffer from a reduction in specific grants received
from Welsh Government and other public bodies. Initial indications
from the provisional settlement are, however, that the risk is very
limited in 2020-21. It remains the case that where such grant
reductions do occur they will require specific service cost reductions in
addition to any savings targets identified above.

The savings proposals for 2020/21 and beyond are predicated on
clear and decisive action being taken to deliver wide-scale
transformational change. This will require robust implementation,
monitoring, review and if necessary enforcement of savings proposals.

The timing of Welsh Government announcements on the detail of both
core and specific grants means that uncertainty will remain until after
the final period of the budget setting process.

Ongoing forecast service overspending in 2019/20 which may or
may not continue into 2020/21.

General Reserves remain at the lowest advisable level as advised by
the Council’s 151 officer and are not therefore able to meet any large
current or future service overspends.

Costs of staffing reductions could continue to be significant. All
future departure costs will fall to individual service revenue accounts,
including education, for schools departures.

Overspending risks in 2020/21 are material because future savings
are considered to be equally challenging to both agree and deliver, as
notwithstanding this year’s settlement, savings continue to need to be
made, and require ever more difficult decisions and more wide scale
transformational change

Local Government and Elections (Wales) Bill — the Welsh
Government has proposed legislative changes around Local
Government and Elections. There are likely to be financial implications
arising from this, however until more detail and implementation
timescales are known this can only remain a risk for future
consideration.

18
Page 26



7.1.

7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

k) Future Year Settlements - there has been no indication from the
Welsh Government on future year settlements — there is a significant
risk that the increase for 2020/21 may not be capable of being fully
sustained in future settlements.

Consultation and Engagement

In previous years the Council has consulted on a number of issues
including:-

e Specific budget proposals relating to budget reductions impacting
on the following year’s revenue and capital budget together with
potential longer term savings to deliver the MTFP.

e Consultation on shaping the Council’'s Wellbeing Objectives, as set
out in the Corporate Plan 2018-22.

In terms of Council priorities, consultation has been taken into account in
deciding the new key priorities (Well-being Objectives and Improvement
Objectives) which are as follows:-

e Safeguarding people from harm — so that our citizens are free from
harm and exploitation.

e Improving Education and Skills - so that everyone in Swansea
gains the skills and qualifications they need to succeed in life.

e Transforming our Economy and Infrastructure — so that Swansea
has a thriving mixed use City Centre and a local economy that will
support the prosperity of our citizens.

e Tackling Poverty — so that every person in Swansea can achieve
their potential.

e Maintaining and enhancing Swansea’s Natural Resources and
Biodiversity — so that we maintain and enhance biodiversity,
reduce our carbon footprint, improve our knowledge and
understanding of our natural environment and benefit health and
well-being.

e Transformation and Future Council development — so that we
and the services we provide are sustainable and fit for the future.

In terms of the current consultation it is not intended that we repeat the
consultation exercise on overarching Council priorities at this time.
Likewise we will not consult again on matters that are merely a
continuation of existing good practice, or previously agreed plans, such as
our continued successful implementation of the Safe Looked After
Children reduction strategy, or where there is more detailed consultation,
following the findings of our commissioning reviews.

However, as in previous years, the Council will undertake a full
consultation on proposals that will affect the public in general or specific
sections of the Community.

19
Page 27



7.5.

7.6.

7.7.

7.8.

It is essential that in agreeing to consult we take into account the
following:-

Under the Public Sector Equality Duty (Wales) we have to engage
with protected groups to assess the likely impact of any policies or
practices being proposed or reviewed.

The Wales National Principles for Public Engagement include the
expectation that engagement gives a real chance to influence
policy, service design and delivery from an early stage.

Under the Gunning principles, consultation should be at an early
stage with public bodies having an open mind, those being
consulted have enough information to make an intelligent choice,
enough time is provided for people to make an informed choice and
consultation responses must be taken into account by those making
the decision as to budget.

The requirements and principles embedded in the Well-being of
Future Generations (Wales) Act, which underpin everything that the
Council does.

Details of the settlement dates from Welsh Government detailed
elsewhere in this report highlight the extremely difficult timetable the
Council faces in setting its budget proposals.

In terms of consultation, the Council intends to fulfil its obligations by:-

Undertaking a Public Survey. Specific budget proposals and those
relating to the Commissioning Reviews will be included in the public
survey that will be available online and in hard copy format at
venues across the City and County.

Consultation with specific groups. We will consult a number of
Groups including children and young people, groups with protected
characteristics and organisations such as Community Councils.
Staff roadshows. Cabinet Members will join Officers in engaging
staff at meetings in January.

Unions. The Leader, Cabinet Members and Officers are due to
meet Union representatives to discuss the proposals.

School Budget Forum. Officers and Members will consult the
forum on proposals that affect schools.

Young people’s views.

In addition, the Council will promote and communicate the consultation via
website and Social media.

There will be on-going consultation during the forthcoming year as and
when the individual Commissioning Reviews progress and develop their

20
Page 28



8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

8.4.

proposals for transforming services and helping to deliver contributions
towards the overall savings requirement.

Staffing Implications

The Council, working in partnership with Trade Unions, succeeded in
largely avoiding compulsory redundancies as part of the implementation of
the budget savings for 2019/20. This was achieved by a continued flexible
policy on redeployment and a proactive approach by all parties. The clear
intention is to build on this approach for 2020/21 and to look for other ways
of avoiding compulsory redundancies if at all possible.

However, a reduction in posts in 2020/21 may still be unavoidable, given
that around 40% of the Council’'s overall costs relate to employees
(significantly more in some Service Areas).

Notwithstanding the scale of the challenge, in line with the Council’s
current policy, every effort will be made to minimise compulsory
redundancies. Management action includes:

e Tight management of vacancies so that we manage the deletion of
posts via natural wastage over time

e The use of fixed term appointments where a post needs to be
covered

e Stopping the use of agency staff unless a clear business case can

be made

Redeployment and retraining where ever possible

Further encouragement of staff to consider ER/VR options

Encouraging staff to work flexibly e.g.: reduce hours or job share

Flexible retirement

The groups of staff likely to be most at risk (no options can be ruled out at
this stage) are those affected by service savings, those in management/
supervisory posts, those employed in business support functions.

Those employed in schools are also considered to be at risk but staffing
decisions are a matter for individual school governing bodies to determine.
The latest indicative estimate of the impact of the current proposals on
total staffing numbers for 2020/21 is set out in Table 10 (shown as Full
Time Equivalents (FTES)).

21
Page 29



8.5.

8.6.

8.7.

Table 10 — Impact of Savings Proposals on FTEs 2020/21

FTEs
Service Saving Proposals
Resources 4
Place 4
Education (excluding Schools) 1
Social Services 29
Total | 38
FTEs
Indicative schools figure *
Schools | 0
Total \ 38

* Decisions will be taken by individual school bodies.

The Council will need to consult with Trade Unions about the 2020/21
savings proposals and the likely impact on staff; in particular, the
management of change and selection criteria where posts are at risk of
redundancy. It is a legal requirement and incumbent upon the Council to
commence formal negotiations with the Trade Unions to seek to avoid the
need for such redundancies, to consider alternatives and to seek to reach
agreement on the selection process for redundancies, should we get to
that position. This is in line with the requirements of Section 188 (1) of the
Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992 (as
amended). This is on the basis that these proposals could potentially
affect less than 99 employees and that the period of consultation will be
for a minimum of 30 days.

The Council is committed to continue to work closely with Trade Unions to
minimise the number of compulsory redundancies, as it always is. This
year especially, however, noting the relatively small scale of numbers of
overall posts still remaining at some risk and the potential in the settlement
headroom to consider significant investment into services before the
budget proposals are finalised, the scope for new redeployment
opportunities and absolute minimisation of the final risk to any individual
role is greatly enhanced.

Reflecting the principle in the MTFP stated earlier in this report,
consultation will be undertaken on a rolling basis outside the normal
budget cycle, as the outcomes from commissioning and other reviews are
presented to Cabinet. Consequently, in some Service Areas, it is not
possible at this time to give details of the precise impact on staff and the
figures quoted are, therefore, overall estimates. The regular liaison
meetings with Trade Unions will be used to provide more detail when this
becomes available as future options are agreed.

22
Page 30



9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

Delivery — “Decide and Do”

Delivery of the Budget strategy and Savings Programme is clearly critical.
If this is not given the right attention savings will not be achieved. This
requires a clear understanding of the organisational requirements to
deliver as set out in Sustainable Swansea.

Deliverability of Savings

In parallel with the consultation process, we are undertaking a robust
appraisal of all options for savings to ensure:

e They are deliverable
e We understand the impact
e We have assessed the risks and how these can be mitigated

Subject to the above, we will adopt the principle of “decide and do” in
terms of a pragmatic approach to the implementation of proposals.

The Corporate Management Team has oversight of the programme
management arrangements for the Savings Programme. This includes a
sponsorship role for Directors, supported by a wide range of Heads of
Service and Senior Managers from every part of the Council and project
support.

Timeline

The remaining timeline for the Budget process is set out in Table 11
below.

This timetable is effectively being driven by the dates set for Brexit and
then the General Election, which have affected the ability of the Welsh
Government to determine its final detailed budget proposals for 2020/21.

Table 11 — Budget Timetable

oth Cabinet Approves budget proposals for
January consultation

2020

oth Initial consultation | Annual meeting with Headteachers

January with Schools starts | on 14" January, School Budget
2020 Forum met on 19" December

gth Consultation A variety of means will be used
January commences including specific consultation with
2020 o Staff

23
Page 31




e Trade Unions

e Young People

e Taxpayers

e The public
6t Consultation Report will be produced on
February | closes consultation responses
2020
Early Scrutiny Review of Cabinet proposals
February
2020
20t Cabinet Reviews consultation feedback and
February recommends Budget
2020
5t March | Council Approves Budget and sets Council
2020 Tax

10. Next Steps - A Sustainable Swansea — fit for the future

10.1. As stated above, the scale of the financial challenge requires the Council
to continue to adopt a radically different approach to previous years. An
approach that focuses on:

e The core future purpose of the Council

e The transformation of services and the model of delivery

e Greater collaboration with other councils and local organisations,
community groups and residents

e And, above all, sustainable solutions with prevention at its heart

This ambition is set out in Sustainable Swansea — fit for the future.

10.2. Uncertainty of future funding, especially in a post Brexit scenario, means a
range of spending options need to be considered including risks of
substantial real terms cuts but equally opportunities for real terms increase
if overall public spending is materially increased. Spending decisions
cannot take place without a fundamental review of the future purpose and
shape of the Council to 2020 and beyond. This is particularly important
because:

e The Council has clear aspirations and policy commitments to
improve outcomes for residents that will need to be delivered
alongside savings

24
Page 32



10.3.

11.

11.1.

11.2.

11.3.

e We will also need to consider the requirement for further investment
in prevention in social care to remodel the projected future demand
for services

e This requires a debate about innovation, service transformation,
and doing things differently

e And we must collaborate with others to achieve this

e All this has to be considered alongside the ambitious Capital
Development programme with known increases in associated future
borrowing costs

e To ultimately deliver the well-being of future generations.

Consequently, the current debate with residents and partners, as well as
inside the Council, about the Core Purpose of the Council, what residents
and communities can do for themselves and the Future Shape of the
Council is fundamental.

Equality and Engagement Implications

The Council is subject to the Public Sector Equality Duty (Wales) and
must, in the exercise of their functions, have due regard to the need to:

e Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and
other conduct prohibited by the Act.

e Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a
protected characteristic and those who do not.

e Foster good relations between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not.

Our Equality Impact Assessment process ensures that we have paid due
regard to the above.

In line with legislative requirements, a fundamental part of our approach is
to assess the impact of proposals on residents and the community. As in
previous years, the corporate Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) process
continues to be followed for all new proposals. EIA reports will not be
finalised until engagement activities have been completed so that the
findings can be taken into account. They will then form part of the
decision making process. Proposals that were previously screened (and/or
subject to a full EIA report) are being re-visited by managers to ensure
that:

e The information is still accurate and relevant and up-to-date

e Proposals comply with the Well-being of Future Generations
(Wales) Act

e Proposals comply with the Welsh Language Standards

Cabinet and Council will receive a full report on the feedback from the
consultation and outcomes of the EIA process in February 2020 so that
they can be fully taken into account before any decisions are made.

25
Page 33



11.4.

12.

12.1.

12.2.

12.3.

13.

13.1.

13.2.

13.3.

There will also be full engagement with the Council’s Scrutiny Committee.
Financial Implications

This report sets out the Council’s projected budget position for 2020/21
and sets out proposed savings to meet the projected shortfall currently
estimated at £18.380m.

It is a legal requirement that Council sets a balanced Revenue Budget for
each financial year and it is essential that detailed plans to address
projected shortfalls are developed and, more importantly, delivered over
the coming years.

Progress with achieving savings agreed as part of the 2019/20 budget is
monitored each month by the Corporate Management Team and the
Budget Performance and Review Group, with quarterly reports to Cabinet.

Legal Implications

Specific legal duties relating to consultation and the setting of the budget
are set out in the main body of the report. The Council is under a duty to
set a balanced budget by 11 March 2020.

Any budget consultation must be meaningful and be taken into
consideration when making any decision.

The council has a public sector equality duty under the Equality Act 2010.
In order to comply with that duty it is essential that Equality Impact
Assessments are undertaken where appropriate in relation to budget
proposals and any impact is considered.

Background Papers: None

Appendices: Appendix A — Statement of Medium Term Budget Priorities

Appendix B — Savings Proposals 2020/21

26
Page 34



APPENDIX A

STATEMENT OF MEDIUM-TERM BUDGET PRIORITIES

PURPOSE

This paper sets out the Council’s views on relative service and budget priorities in
the context of the delivery of Sustainable Swansea — fit for the future and the
Medium Term Financial Plan.

The statement has three objectives:

e An indicative statement about future funding for services, together with an
overall percentage reduction in spend over the next 4 years

e A high level statement for services about expectations for transformation
and delivery

e Policy statements for each major service block setting out how the funding
challenge will be met

STRATEGIC CONTEXT

The scale of the financial, demographic and sustainability challenges facing
Swansea require a radically different approach to the past. Sustainable Swansea
— fit for the future sets out the Council’s long-term objectives for meeting these
challenges and for transformational change for services, the Council and our
relationship with residents.

The Council has also adopted a revised Corporate Plan that sets out six top well-
being priorities for the future:

Safeguarding people from harm

Improving Education & Skills

Transforming our Economy & Infrastructure

Tackling Poverty

Maintaining and enhancing Swansea’s Natural Resources and Biodiversity
Transformation & Future Council development

The Council’s overall aim is to protect frontline delivery of services as far as
possible. However, whilst many things are important, not everything can be a
priority. It is important, therefore - particularly in the current climate of
significantly reduced resources — to set out clearly our expectations on all
services and relative priorities for funding.

27
Page 35



FINANCIAL CONTEXT

We currently estimate that the Council will need to save around £52m over the
next 4 years, on a central scenario of future grant increases at 2%. The actual
amount could vary significantly given the uncertainty over the comprehensive
Spending Review due in 2020 and Brexit impacts. This requires not only a
strategy for transformation, which is set out in Sustainable Swansea — fit for the
future, but also a clear statement of the expected impact across the Council’s
major services.

SETTING INDICATIVE MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL ALLOCATIONS

The Council is proposing indicative medium-term financial allocations following
an assessment of our overall priorities and the financial context that we face.

The statement which follows is based on an assessment of services in relation to
the following criteria:

¢ Invest: those Services where the Council will increase current
levels of investment in order to:
o Deliver our top priorities; and/or
o Achieve significant reductions in future spend
¢ Maintain: those services where the Council will broadly maintain
current level of spend in the medium term to:
o Deliver our top priorities
o Meet statutory requirements
o Meet resident expectations
e Remodel: those services where the Council will remodel the
current level of spend over the medium term:
o Because these are lower priority areas
o To contribute to the overall budget savings requirement

In setting financial allocations we have also had regard to the “gearing” effect of
savings on services. In other words, if our current savings requirement of £52m
over four years was applied, for example, just to the Resources Directorate
(excluding Council Tax Reduction Scheme) and the Place Directorate, the
budgets for these areas would be mostly cut in their entirety. Consequently,
other areas such as Education and Social Care also need to face some level of
reprioritisation over the next 4 years given the relative size of their budgets.

GENERAL PRINCIPLES FOR ALL SERVICES

There are a number of principles that apply to all the Council’s services,
regardless of the assessment of relative priorities. These are set out below.

Budget Principles

The Council has adopted a number of Budget Principles which underpin
Sustainable Swansea:

28
Page 36



Everything is included Increased income

Engagement Different models of delivery

We will have less money Supporting those at risk
Demonstrating efficiency Evidence base

Cutting Red Tape Sustainable outcomes/prevention
Full cost recovery Personal Responsibility

All Services must apply and be consistent with these Budget Principles.

All Services are also required to address these Principles as part of business

planning and developing savings proposals.

Service Transformation and Efficiency

There are expectations upon all Services in relation to transformation and

efficiency which must be met regardless of relative priority for funding:

Transformation

All service must transform through a fundamental
review of purpose, however services are
commissioned, to:
e deliver better outcomes
e develop a sustainable delivery model, fit for the
future
e remodel costs and secure value for money

Efficiency

All services must continue to strive for efficiency, in
particular:
¢ reduce management and other overheads
e maximise opportunities for increasing income
from charges, trading and external sources
¢ reduce the cost of purchasing supplies and
services
e work with others to achieve better outcomes
e look for opportunities for residents or community
groups to take or share responsibility for
services

29
Page 37




APPENDIX B

Director Head of Savings Proposals Savings
Service 2020/21
Budget £'000
Cross Becoming digital by default and reducing paper printing 25
Cutting
Cross Changing Pension AVCs and staff reward scheme to tax 71
Cutting efficient salary sacrifice schemes
Cross Review of long service awards as part of a better rewards 98
Cutting scheme
Cross Cutting Savings 194
Education |Non- Ethnic minority achievement service to be fully grant funded 17
Delegated
Education |Non- School Meal to increase by 5p (as per previous 46
Delegated consultation)
Education |Non- Reduction in regional improvements service and grant 16
Delegated consistent with funding settlements
Education |Non- Home to School Transport review savings identified 250
Delegated
Education |Non- SIMS / MIS Joint Working and broadband / licence costs 40
Delegated through enhanced scale discounts
Education |Non- Base budget adjustment for Central Education department 2,000
Delegated shortfall (hon-schools) — fully offset by investment
Education - Non-Delegated Budgets 2,369
Place Corporate Reduced maintenance required on a number of building 50
Building assets as size of the corporate estate is reduced or
Services investment in buildings reduces maintenance costs
Place Corporate Additional income generated from the re-letting of released 275
Property space in the Civic as a result of the agile programme
Services
Place Corporate Additional income via existing investment properties and 100
Property new property acquisitions
Services
Place Cultural Additional saving as a result of new leisure centres contract 92
Services
Place Cultural Savings as a result of establishment of community hubs 82
Services and better one stop shop facilities
Place Highways and | Construction of new Active Travel links which will facilitate 140
Transportation | pupils walking and cycling to school
Place Housing & Increase to fees and charges and increased income 213
Public generation activity across Bereavement Services,
Protection Registration Services, Building Control, Trading Standards,
Food & Safety, HMO licensing and Housing Renewals.
Place Housing & Integrate asylum seeker housing function in core Housing 37
Public Options service
Protection

30
Page 38




Director Head of Savings Proposals Savings
Service 2020/21
Budget £'000
Place Housing & Proceeds of Crime (POCA) income to be reinvested in core 10
Public Trading Standards Service
Protection
Place Housing & A fee to 'save the date' for future weddings at civic centre 25
Public
Protection
Place Housing & Savings as a result of the conclusion of the Renewal Area 86
Public programme when it expires in 2019
Protection
Place Planning & Move City Centre Halloween Event into cultural programme 10
City (from regeneration)
Regeneration
Place Planning & Planning Applications Fee uplift 50
City
Regeneration
Place Planning & Reduce net to taxpayer of cost of Natural Environment 25
City services by generating additional income and maximise use
Regeneration |of grants
Place Planning & Saving as a result of Swansea Vale Landscape 10
City Maintenance changes
Regeneration
Place Various "Income earning" services to self-fund pressures from 750
increased fee charges on full cost recovery basis
Place Various Review of additional staffing costs 250
Place Waste Increase graffiti removal charges to ensure full cost 10
Management |recovery
& Parks
Place Waste Reduction in use of HGV vehicles (SKIPS) 57
Management
& Parks
Place Waste Recycling container provision to be by collection only 30
Management
& Parks
Place 2,302
Resources |Resources Recover exceptional admin costs from the City Deal 46
Resources |Resources Efficiencies in Digital services as a result of current 65
programme changes, e.g. lines, licences etc
Resources |Resources Recharge lawyer costs against large project budgets and 20
contract work
Resources |Resources Review of insurance levels/reserves 700
Resources |Resources Review of Management Structure 40
Resources |Resources Review of costs of Welsh Translation Service (as part of 10
joint working with NPT)
Resources 881

31
Page 39




Director Head of Savings Proposals Savings
Service 2020/21
Budget £'000
Social Adult Services | Amalgamation of Ty Cila and Alexandra Road Respite 48
Services Provision (implemented)
Social Adult Services |Implementation of the Social Services and Poverty & 181
Services Prevention Business Support hub
Social Adult Services |Increase partner contributions or alternative forms of 100
Services funding for Local Area Co-ordinators and increase coverage
Social Adult Services |Increase regional investment in Hospital to Home Recovery 190
Services Service
Social Adult Services |Increased client income 500
Services
Social Adult Services |Review all Mental Health and Learning Disability packages 750
Services of care, to ensure that they are fit for purpose and all those
eligible for health funding receive it
Social Adult Services |Review of Senior Staff structure across Adults, Children and 500
Services Poverty and Prevention Services to create a better structure
Social Adult Services | Targeted increase in recourse to direct payments where this 250
Services is a more cost effective alternative to traditional forms of
direct care provision.
Social Child and Better integrated arrangements with Child & Family and 400
Services Family Poverty & Prevention to create one single approach to
Services achieve a reduction in residential placements
Social Child and Better integrated arrangements with Child and Family and 500
Services |Family Poverty and Prevention to create one single approach to
Services IFA placements
Social Child and Maximise regional grant opportunities across the service to 200
Services Family off-set where appropriate
Services
Social Poverty & Relocation of staff from Alexandra House to release grant 40
Services Prevention funding from Flying Start and Families First
Social Poverty & Integrate Family Support Services into a single family 100
Services |Prevention support function that operates with a more targeted
prevention offer
Social Poverty & Review opportunities for Outdoor Centres with new 180
Services Prevention business model. Full consultation will be undertaken on
completion of the review.
Social Poverty & Review structure in the Life Stages Team to achieve better 20
Services | Prevention alignment other roles in Child and Family and adult services
Social Services 3,959
Grand Total 9,705
32

Page 40




Agenda Iltem 6

(¢
S

Cyngor Abertawe
Swansea Council

O e

Report of the Cabinet Member for Delivery & Performance

Cabinet — 9 January 2020

Quarter 2 2019/20 Performance Monitoring Report

Purpose: To report corporate performance for Quarter 2
2019/20.
Policy Framework: Delivering a Successful & Sustainable Swansea

Corporate Plan 2018/22
Sustainable Swansea — Fit for the Future

Consultation: Access to Services, Finance, Legal.
Recommendation(s): It is recommended that:
1) the performance results are noted and reviewed to help inform

executive decisions on resource allocation and, where relevant,
corrective actions to manage and improve performance and efficiency
in delivering national and local priorities.

Report Author: Richard Rowlands
Finance Officer: Paul Roach
Legal Officer: Debbie Smith

Access to Services Officer: Rhian Millar

1.0

11

1.2

1.3

Introduction

This report presents the performance results for Quarter 2 2019/20
delivering the Council’s Well-being Objectives (priorities) described in the
Corporate Plan 2018/22 Delivering a Successful & Sustainable Swansea.

The outturn presented in the performance tables (Appendix A)
incorporates an overview of performance that needs to be considered
alongside the current financial situation of the Council.

The financial resources required to achieve the specified performance
levels in 2019/20 have been provided in the approved budget. As part of
the work on Sustainable Swansea — Fit for the future there will be an
increased focus on understanding the level of activity and outcomes that

Page 41




2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.0

4.0.1

are achieved for the budget allocated so that choices can be made about
relative priorities.

Performance and Improvement

Performance is judged using the results measured by Corporate Plan
performance indicators compared to agreed targets.

Improvement is measured by comparing the results of Corporate Plan
performance indicators against the results from the same period last year
where comparison is possible.

It is important to point out that each of the corporate priorities cannot be
seen in isolation from each other. Each priority both affects and is
affected by the others. For example, Improving Education and Skills is
both important to our efforts to tackle poverty and improve the economy.
For this reason, many of the performance indicators allocated to
measuring one priority can also be used to show progress meeting other
priorities.

Outturn

The Corporate Plan performance indicators measure progress meeting
the following key objectives:

I) Safeguarding people from harm.

i) Improving education and skills.

iif) Transforming our economy & infrastructure.

iv) Tackling poverty.

v) Transformation & future Council development.

vi) Maintaining and enhancing Swansea's natural resources and
biodiversity.

The outturn for Quarter 2 2019/20 shows that 28 out of 57 (49%)
Corporate Plan performance indicators (that had targets and where there
was data) met their targets. 21 out of 54 (39%) comparable Corporate
Plan performance indicators also showed improvement compared to
Quarter 2 2018/19.

The performance tables in Appendix A also set out an overview of
performance for each Corporate Plan priority provided by Directors and
Heads of Service who are the responsible leads; these overviews are set
out in para 4.0.

Context: Overviews of Performance in Quarter 2 2019/20
The following overviews provided by responsible departments describe

the context to the performance meeting the Council’s key objectives as at
the Quarter 2 2019/20.

Page 42



4.1

41.1

4.1.2

4.1.3

Safeguarding people from harm

The corporate plan sets out the Council's commitment to ensuring that
citizens live their lives free from harm and exploitation. To help meet this
commitment we expect safeguarding to be seen as everybody's business
and therefore that all officers and Elected Members should undertake
safeguarding training proportionate to their role. Unfortunately the
Council doesn't yet have a database which can sufficiently accurately
capture the overall proportion of staff who have undertaken the relevant
training at any given time. Therefore we are currently reporting a proxy
measure of how many new individuals have undertaken training in any
given quarter. Whilst this indicator remains below target, other
intelligence gathered via the corporate safeguarding board indicates that
more than 90% of staff and Elected Members have indeed completed the
required training. Improvements to corporate reporting databases are
planned along with other significant improvements to the Council's IT
infrastructure.

The Council is committed to ensuring that all children are safe from
harm, living with their families or in family settings. Our work to create the
optimum conditions in which Swansea children are most likely to remain
living safely with their families or in family settings is captured within the
Safe LAC Reduction Strategy. Taken together, a number of the
indicators within the corporate performance report evidence the success
or otherwise of the Safe LAC Reduction Strategy. Despite missing target
the numbers of children becoming looked after has stabilised and is
beginning to reduce, albeit slowly. However as evidenced by other
related indicators, there is likely to be a connection between high level of
demand, reduced social work capacity and a slight consequent
deterioration in performance which will have slowed progress.
Notwithstanding this, the overall judgement of the Director of Social
Services remains that Swansea has a high performing child and family
service and that child protection interventions with individual children
remain safe and robust.

The Council remains committed to ensuring all vulnerable adults are
safeguarded from harm, able to live to their maximum potential and that
people age well, are able to live independently and safely within their
own home. Whilst the number of adults the Council is supporting has
increased above expectations, it appears that this increase is
predominantly linked to an increased uptake in the use of community
equipment. The use of equipment to maintain independence is a positive.
However it is concerning that the number of carers receiving an
assessment has decreased. This is directly related to workload
pressures within Swansea's integrated health and social care older
people hubs. A failure to best support carers will undermine the Council's
strategic objectives and therefore a planned restructure of adult services
to prioritise resources on key functions such as safeguarding, deprivation
of liberty safeguard assessments and strengths based, outcome
focussed assessment and review processes is a key priority. In reality
the level of demand for health and social care support within the region is
consistently outstripping resource and capacity to meet that demand.

Page 43



4.2

42.1

4.2.2

4.2.3

4.2.4

4.2.5

4.3

43.1

4.3.2

4.3.3

This is best evidenced by the rate of delayed transfers of care which
continues to significantly miss target. The Council is working closely with
partners in the Regional Partnership Board and continues to petition
Welsh Government to secure additional local and regional investment.

Improving education & skills

Swansea's performance was above the expected benchmark level at key
stage 4. Attainment of primary age pupils at foundation phase and key
stage 2 indicate that, although targets were not met, outcomes
suggested increased confidence in the accuracy of teacher assessments
in Swansea as well as the impact of changes in assessment areas in
foundation phase.

The attainment of learners who are looked after children is variable.
Education staff reported a number of factors that can affect this
performance indicator each year due to the small numbers of learners
involved including a higher number of pupils with additional learning
needs, late arrivals from other counties, and a volatile population who
move in and out of care which can disrupt education at key points in their
educational career particularly in adolescence.

Attendance in Swansea remains comparatively high. Measures of
inclusion such as attendance, exclusions and numbers of learners who
are educated otherwise than at school continues to be monitored. There
is an increasing emphasis on progress made and value added within a
more localised curriculum and service offer

Partneriaeth Sgiliau Abertawe/Swansea Skills Partnership (PSA) meets
regularly and has two, clear workstreams - digital capacity and advice,
information and guidance for vocational education and careers.

Looking forward the implementation of the Additional Learning Needs
and Education Tribunal Act 2018 and Curriculum for Wales 2022 under
the Welsh Government's National Mission will pose challenges and
opportunities that will need reflecting in the performance frameworks of
the Education Department.

Transforming our economy and infrastructure

The vast majority of targets have been met again this quarter.
Furthermore, trends are predominantly upwards on the quarter, and
against this time last year.

However, the Percentage of all major applications with an economic
imperative that are approved has missed target again. Only 3 major
applications were refused as these were unacceptable in planning policy
terms and negotiations could not provide for a positive outcome.

Our major regeneration priorities continue to make substantial progress.
Swansea Central Phase 1 enabling works are largely complete, with
excellent progress achieved on the listed wall piling works. The main

Page 44



4.3.4

4.3.5

4.3.6

4.3.7

4.3.8

4.3.9

4.3.10

contract will be awarded subject to Cabinet approval of the FPR7 report
in November. The Kingsway infrastructure project continues to make
excellent progress on site. Further market testing and design works have
been carried out on the Employment Hub building, which has included a
detailed Stakeholder consultation exercise. The Pre-planning application
consultation will commence in Quarter 3.

At Hafod Copperworks, the HLF Stage 2 Powerhouse project
procurement is nearing completion. The Morfa bascule bridge has been
successfully lifted and repair works are underway. Further discussions
have taken place with the NZ Skyline project team and a board decision
has been received to progress the funding application process with
Welsh Government.

The Felindre inward investment construction works are now nearing
completion for hand-over to the occupier in Quarter 3. A report has been
prepared to progress the launch & marketing exercise for strategic
development sites and will be reported to Cabinet in November.

Significant progress has been made in the preparation of funding bids to
secure the restoration of Palace Theatre and Albert Hall listed buildings.
The Wind Street environmental enhancement preferred scheme has
been approved and detailed designs will now be prepared.

The WHQS programme is continuing to deliver major repairs and
improvements to council homes ensuring they are in a good state of
repair, thermally efficient, safe and secure and meeting the needs of
individuals. To date the WHQS programme has delivered £18.3m of
repairs and improvements.

In Quarters 1 and 2, the Council has delivered 932 new kitchens, 866
new bathrooms and undertaken major thermally insulation improvements
to 145 homes. Further work is taking place to renew roofs, renew
electrical wiring in homes, provide new efficient gas boilers and improve
garden boundaries and paving.

The Council is progressing well with its fire safety improvements,
particularly with its installation of sprinkler systems in high rise blocks
and sheltered accommodation. The Council has been working with fire
protection company Aico in developing and trialling new smoke alarms
systems that continually monitor alarms ensuring they are operational
and report incidence of fire via instant text message and email; this
system offers a real opportunity to further improve fire safety in the home
particularly for older and more vulnerable tenants.

The WHQS schemes also provides major community benefits; in the 2nd
guarter a 178 weeks of targeted recruitment and training were delivered
specifically for people who were unemployed and experiencing barriers
to accessing the jobs market; 2 people from the local community have
been employed in this period and 15 people previously engaged for
WHQS work have seen their employment continued with ongoing
projects.

Page 45



4311

4.3.12

4.3.13

4.3.14

4.3.15

4.4

44.1

4.4.2

As part of the Council's commitment to innovative, energy efficient
housing, a number of retrofit schemes are being carried out: there are 6
bungalows in Craig Cefn Parc currently underway; 8 properties planned
in Felindre and the Council has recently completed a project in Garnswillt
to 10 properties. These schemes will test the application of renewable
technologies to existing inefficient housing, transforming them into some
of the most energy efficient homes in the Council's housing stock.

The Council's More Homes Programme, focussed on providing new build
Council housing, continues to move forward at pace. Cabinet approved
the Housing Revenue Account Development Plan in February 2019. This
sets out the programme to develop over 140 new homes up to 2022. The
Council is currently looking to increase this ambition, and will publish a
10 year delivery plan for affordable housing.

Following on from the first passivhaus pilot at Colliers way, the second
phase of the More Homes project is underway at a further 2 sites at Parc
Y Helyg and Colliers Way Phase 2. As part of this phase, 34 new homes
will be built as 'Homes as Power Stations' using funds from a £1.5m
Innovative Housing programme grant from the Welsh Government. The
homes will have innovative features such as solar panels and battery-
powered energy, as well as the inclusion of swift bricks to support
biodiversity.

Planning permission has been granted to convert 2 new family homes in
West Cross as part of a refurbishment of a former social services
building and a further 26 homes are planned for a new development in
Hill View Crescent & Beacons View Road in Clase. This scheme has
also been awarded £1.5m of Innovative Housing Funding, which will fund
the renewable technologies to continue the Homes as Power Stations
theme. This will also be the site of a new build Welsh medium primary
school, and will provide an opportunity to regenerate the area.

Following publication of the HRA PIN to explore interest from potential
partners in delivering a development programme across around 30
potential HRA sites in phases, a Cabinet report is being prepared to
outline the next steps in progressing the procurement of a development
partner or partners. The aim will be to deliver mixed tenure housing on
the Council owned sites, whilst maximising the delivery of affordable
housing to meet local need. The Council is also in the process of
procuring a team to deliver a masterplan for the regeneration of a large
HRA site, where refurbishment alone may not address the issues.

Tackling Poverty

The Corporate Plan sets out the council’s commitment to Tackle Poverty
to ensure that every person in Swansea can achieve his or her potential.
To meet this commitment the corporate Tackling Poverty Strategy
ensures that Tackling Poverty is everybody’s business.

The number of people gaining employment through Employability
support, supports the well-being objective steps; ensuring that young

Page 46



4.4.3

4.4.4

4.4.5

4.4.6

people are able to access employment, education and training after
reaching 16 and, individuals are supported to overcome their barriers to
employment through coordinated person centre employability support.
This is achieved through the Swansea Working coordinated employment
approach and associated employability support programmes of
Communities for Work, Communities for Work Plus, Workways and Cam
Nesa. Whilst the number of people gaining employment through
Employability Support indicator within the performance report is below
target, it is due to a seasonal downturn in recruitment during the summer
months and less engagement from participants, often due to school
holidays and caring commitments. There has been an increase between
quarters and anticipate that the results will increase in the next quarter.

The step to help address the impacts of Welfare reform, such as
supporting people to claim the full benefits they are entitled to so that
they are able to maximise their income is reported through the amount of
welfare benefits raised through securing rights and entitlements by the
Welfare Rights team. The amount of benefits secured is significantly
higher than anticipated and the team have achieved a 96% success rate
on appeals.

The performance indicator of Housing Benefit speed of processing and
the average time for processing new claims has had an expected drop in
performance due to reduced resources and the more complex cases
remain in Housing Benefit rather than those transferred to Universal
Credit (UC). At the end of September there were 12,152 UC claimants in
Swansea and it is expected to increase as more citizens move onto UC.
The impact of welfare reform changes has seen an increase in the
number and complexity of welfare benefit enquiries we are dealing with.
There is an increase in rent arrears in the council and being reported by
partner organisations. There is a significant increase in the use of
foodbanks and a sample of Citizen’s Advice clients showed almost three
quarters of debts were priority debts of rent, council tax and benefit
related debts. Additional activity to help address the impacts of welfare
reform include targeting support to cohorts affected by changes, training
frontline staff and personalised support for citizens.

The performance indicator of Council Tax Reduction (CTR) speed of
processing and average time for processing new claims is below the
target, this is due to the decision to use the Universal Credit information
as the claim for CTR with the aim of maximising the period we can award
the CTR. This decline in performance will not impact on the well-being
objective, as the applicant is better off as we are implementing more
CTR for those who apply for it when they are receiving UC.

The number of accredited qualifications achieved by adults with local
Authority support has exceeded the target. This is due to the delivery of a
comprehensive sector specific training programme which many
employability programme participants have accessed, including health
and social care, site security, construction and customer care. The
partnership working between Swansea Working, Lifelong Learning,
employability programmes and partners has led to greater attendance

Page 47



4.4.7

4.4.8

4.5

45.1

45.2

45.3

454

45.5

and achievement of accredited training and qualifications. Additional
training and work experience opportunities are being developed with the
art, culture and heritage partners which is supporting the steps to meet
the well-being objective and will boost skills, confidence, self-esteem and
aspiration.

Planned developments that will help us meet the Well-being Objective
include the continued work of the corporate cross directorate Poverty
Forum with actions including our approach to managing personal debts
to the council, reducing evictions and reducing barriers to services due to
income poverty. The well attended Poverty Partnership Forum continues
to develop and deliver initiatives to tackle poverty including
entrepreneurship support, focus on food poverty and coordinated crisis
support.

Commissioning reviews focused on Financial Inclusion and Employability
Support have started to determine the future shape and delivery of
support to ensure that services are targeting the most vulnerable,
outcomes are maximised and that we are supporting citizens out of
poverty.

Transformation & future Council development

Progress continues towards delivering the Well-being Objectives
contained within the Council's Corporate Plan. One of the key priorities
this quarter has involved the annual budget and in parallel the review of
the Sustainable Swansea programme. The future financial picture
continues to be challenging, therefore the transformation of services
remains a priority, particularly enabled by digital technology.

A new Digital Inclusion Strategy has been developed in addition to a
revised Digital Strategy. This is the bedrock for modernising services,
introducing new ways of working and transforming the Council. As seen
this quarter with the CUST2a and b indicators, public take-up of online
channels continues to grow as more online services and digital
processes are added to the Council's website.

A significant amount of Brexit preparation has also been undertaken this
quarter and the Council now has high assurance of its position in the
event of a 'no deal' scenario.

The Co-production Strategic Framework and revised Consultation &
Engagement Strategy were discussed at the Policy Development
Committee. These will be taken forward for implementation including
guidance and toolkits for staff looking to co-design and co-produce
services with the public, partners and other key stakeholders.

The Organisational Development Strategy objectives continue to be

delivered including Leadership development opportunities for all
employees wherever they may be in the organisation.

Page 48



4.5.6

4.5.7

4.5.8

4.6

4.6.1

4.6.2

4.6.3

The Council has also developed an action plan to deliver the
recommendations proposed by the Scrutiny Inquiry into Equalities. Many
of the actions involve tasks which work in partnership alongside the
equality forums. This quarter the agile working zones were adapted to
include a Welsh speaking area as well as encouraging all staff to
communicate in Welsh. Welsh language training continues to be a
priority.

Staff sickness continues to be high across the Council as reflected in the
PAMOOL1 indicator. Management measures are in place to work with
Services on an individual basis as well as reviewing the overall Policy.
Other projects are also in flight which may positively impact sickness,
modernising services and ways of working which support staff.

The budget position of the FINA6 indicator continues to be red.
Reiterating the comment above, CMT continues with the expectation that
both service and overall net expenditure must be held within the relevant
limits of the current year budget as set by Council. There is still an urgent
need to identify and implement existing and additional budget savings
across all Council Services to improve the 19/20 position and beyond.
However, there remains a degree of confidence that some further
inroads can be made into the forecast overspend by ongoing
management and Cabinet action.

Maintaining and enhancing Swansea's natural resources and biodiversity

80% of Swansea is green space and is extremely diverse with over 50%
of the County having significant ecological value. Although there is
protection for the environment via a range of site designations and
legislation, biodiversity loss and species extinction is a challenge and a
risk, and more awareness raising is needed.

Recent legislation such as the Resilient Wales Goal in the Well-being of
Future Generations Act 2015 and the Environment (Wales) Act 2016
requires specific actions by the Council to embed biodiversity into
decision making at all levels to support resilient ecosystems and well-
being. It is part of a cultural change that is needed for the decline in
biodiversity to be reversed. Swansea Council are one of the lead local
authorities in Wales in relation to natural environment maintenance and
enhancement.

There is a Working with Nature objective within the Public Services
Board Well-being Plan, a new biodiversity Corporate Objective in the
Corporate Plan and a Climate Emergency has been declared. A Natural
Environment Scrutiny Performance Panel has also been set up to
monitor and contribute to issues around biodiversity. In July 2019 a
Natural Environment Scrutiny Inquiry into ‘What Swansea Council should
do to maintain and enhance its natural environment and biodiversity,
and, in so doing, promote the resilience of ecosystems’ made a number
of recommendations to raise the profile of biodiversity both within and
outside the Council and these have been incorporated into an Action
Plan which is in the process of being implemented.

Page 49



4.6.4

4.6.5

4.6.6

5.0

5.1

5.1.1

5.1.2

5.1.3

Delivery of the Council’s Corporate Biodiversity Objective and the
preparation of the Council’s statutorily required Section 6 Biodiversity
Duty Action Plan (due for publication in Dec 2019) is overseen by a
corporate biodiversity working group established in response to the
Scrutiny Inquiry. This group will help to ensure that biodiversity is
integrated into daily business operations and provide a vehicle for
awareness raising and capacity building; cascading information and best
practice to all service delivery teams and for exploring and testing new
approaches to delivering the sustainable management of natural
resources. Implementation of certain planned project work this year, such
as mapping Green Infrastructure assets and biodiversity audits of
Council owned land, has been delayed due to withdrawal of specific
grant funding for 19/20; however it is anticipated that funding for these
projects will be available for 20/21.

The Council has been congratulated by Welsh Government for its
successful enforcement of environmental protection legislation by
prosecuting the developer and contractor responsible for the felling of
trees at Penllergaer in breach of a tree preservation order. The fines
totalling over £400,000 are amongst the highest ever imposed for this
type of offence. Tree and woodland planting proposals have been
progressed with around 450 trees and 5300 whips planted on Council
owned land over the past year. Over 350 more trees are scheduled to be
planted over the course of the next 6 months. Whilst a successful bid for
a Glastir woodland creation programme will involve planting over 12,500
whips covering 5 hectares over the course of the next 5 years.

A Green Infrastructure Strategy for the City Centre - Swansea Central
Area: Regenerating our City for Wellbeing and Wildlife has been drafted
in partnership with NRW and is subject of ongoing public consultation
with a view to adoption early 2020. This will be complemented by a future
Green Infrastructure Strategy for the County and Supplementary
Planning Guidance on Biodiversity which will seek to ensure that
development proposals maintain and enhance the County’s biodiversity.
The percentage of municipal waste recycled has continued to increase
and now exceeds identified targets, reflecting the success of the
Council’s recent recycling campaign.

Considerations

When making comparisons between previous quarters and 2018/19, the
following should be considered:

The nature and number of some performance indicators (PIs) has
changed between these two periods and therefore direct comparisons
may not always be appropriate.

Many of the performance measures are new and definitions may need
further refinement.

Some targets for new performance indicators are still being baselined.

Page 50



5.1.4

5.1.5

5.1.6

6.0

6.1

6.1.1

6.1.2

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

Some data will be enhanced and improved to be more robust as data
collection methods are developed and / or refined by services over the
coming quarters.

The results do not always account for changes in resources and
workload during that period (although details can be seen in the
numerator and denominator information and in the comments column of
the data tables attached to this report).

There may be changes to the numerator and denominator information
that may affect the trends by showing a decline while the volume of work
has increased.

Equality & Engagement Implications

The Council is subject to the Public Sector Equality Duty (Wales) and
must, in the exercise of their functions, have due regard to the need to:

Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and
other conduct prohibited by the Act.

Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not.

Foster good relations between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not.

Our Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) process ensures that we have
paid due regard to the above.

This report has no direct equality and engagement implications itself
although the data reported may form part of the information that leads to
a service screening for and undertaking an EIA as required.

Financial Implications

In the current and anticipated financial environment further discussion
and consideration will be required around priorities and target setting for
performance improvement as part of Sustainable Swansea — fit for the
future.

Legal Implications

There are no legal implications associated with this report.

Background Papers: None.

Appendices: Appendix A — Quarter 2 2019/20 Performance Monitoring Report.

Page 51



K(/@ Cyngor Abertawe
\Y Swansea Council

~
f Corporate Performance Management Report Q2 2019/2020

Performance against Target - Overall Council Summary Performance compared to same Period of previous
2019/2020 Quarter 2 year
2019/2020 Quarter 2
NO TREND-3

2s abed

RED-18
IMPROVING-21
GREEN-28
DECLINING-30
AMBER-11 STATIC-3
Performance against the target: Performance compared to the same period of
the previous year:
m Met or exceeded target [IEEEYINTEl Beiter performance
AMBER Missed target {less than 5%) STATIC = Same performance
RED Missed target (more than 5%) IS Rdde) Worse performance
NO RAG No target set NG REND] Mew indicator -

Mo historical comparison


Gordon.Wright�
Square


Gordon.Wright�_1
Square


Gordon.Wright�_2
Square



KEY TO GRAPHS

20

15

10

Pl Ref no.

(Period-if other than guarterly)

Direction of Travel

~ § % \ﬁ Jargetline Lo L
\ ‘ N D ‘ N\ il |



Gordon.Wright�_3
Stamp



Safeguarding 17-22

The corporate plan sets out the Council's commitment to ensuring that citizens live their lives free from harm and exploitation.

To help meet this commitment we expect safeguarding to be seen as everybody's business and therefore that all officers and Elected Members should undertake
safeguarding training proportionate to their role. Unfortunately the Council doesn't yet have a database which can sufficiently accurately capture the overall
proportion of staff who have undertaken the relevant training at any given time. Therefore we are currently reporting a proxy measure of how many new individuals
have undertaken training in any given quarter. Whilst this indicator remains below target, other intelligence gathered via the corporate safeguarding board
indicates that more than 90% of staff and Elected Members have indeed completed the required training. Improvements to corporate reporting databases are
planned along with other significant improvements to the Council's IT infrastructure.

The Council is committed to ensuring that all children are safe from harm, living with their families or in family settings. Our work to create the optimum conditions in
which Swansea children are most likely to remain living safely with their families or in family settings is captured within the Safe LAC Reduction Strategy. Taken
together, a number of the indicators within the corporate performance report evidence the success or otherwise of the Safe LAC Reduction Strategy. Despite
missing target the numbers of children becoming looked after has stabilised and is beginning to reduce, albeit slowly. However as evidenced by other related
indicators, there is likely to be a connection between high level of demand, reduced social work capacity and a slight consequent deterioration in performance
which will have slowed progress. Notwithstanding this, the overall judgement of the Director of Social Services remains that Swansea has a high performing child
and family service and that child protection interventions with individual children remain safe and robust.

THe Council remains committed to ensuring all vulnerable adults are safeguarded from harm, able to live to their maximum potential and that people age well, are
ﬁgle to live independently and safely within their own home.

(3]
WWhilst the number of adults the Council is supporting has increased above expectations, it appears that this increase is predominantly linked to an increased
uptake in the use of community equipment. The use of equipment to maintain independence is a positive. However it is concerning that the number of carers
receiving an assessment has decreased. This is directly related to workload pressures within Swansea's integrated health and social care older people hubs. A
failure to best support carers will undermine the Council's strategic objectives and therefore a planned restructure of adult services to prioritise resources on key
functions such as safeguarding, deprivation of liberty safeguard assessments and strengths based, outcome focussed assessment and review processes is a key
priority. In reality the level of demand for health and social care support within the region is consistently outstripping resource and capacity to meet that demand.
This is best evidenced by the rate of delayed transfers of care which continues to significantly miss target. The Council is working closely with partners in the
Regional Partnership Board and continues to petition Welsh Government to secure additional local and regional investment.


Gordon.Wright�_4
Square



Safeguarding 17-22

Performance against Target
2019/2020 Quarter 2

RED-10

Gg abed

AMBER-8

GREEN-13

Performance compared to same Period of previous
year

2019/2020 Quarter 2

IMPROVING-13

DECLINING-17

STATIC-1


Gordon.Wright�_5
Square


Gordon.Wright�_6
Square


Gordon.Wright�_7
Square



Safeguarding 17-22

Performance Indicator

AS10 @

Percentage of annual reviews of care and support
plans completed in adult services

AS10

HIGH is Good

atr2
atra

T
=]

2016/17

atrd

2018/19

atr2

Qtr2
atrd

D

o1
RS11 &

Rate of adults aged 65+ receiving care and support
to meet their well-being needs per 1,000 population

AS11 LOW is Good
120
K
a0 ] L
&0 - | | |
0 4 | | |
0
N R N A R AR R R =
5| &5|&5 &\ &5 |55 8| &85 &8 & &858 &
2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 3019/20

KEY

RAG

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

RAG

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

67.42%

70.00%

DECLINING

2019/2020 Quarter 2 Comment-2019/2020
In comparison with last year,
AMBER performance in the Integrated

Hubs has declined, however,
Care Home Quality Team and
Learning Disability have
improved. As part of the Adult
Services restructure a dedicated
Review Team is going to be
created.

-3.7%

2017/2018 Quarter 2 2018/2019 Quarter 2
65.00% 70.00%
IMPROVING IMPROVING
4802 4152
6944 5933
81.00 93.00

DECLINING IMPROVING

3999 3408

47220 47549

3361

4985

RED

-19.1%

-16.0%

Some 450 more older people
were supported during the first
half of 2019/20 than anticipated.
In particular, we have supported

16.4%
83.44 64% Clients considerably more with

74.00

DECLINING

4009

48049

equipment than in Q2 last year.

-20.4%

+17.6%

+1.1%


Gordon.Wright�_8
Square


Gordon.Wright�_9
Square


Gordon.Wright�_10
Square


Gordon.Wright�_11
Square


Gordon.Wright�_12
Square


Gordon.Wright�_13
Square


Gordon.Wright�_14
Square


Gordon.Wright�_15
Square


Gordon.Wright�_16
Square


Gordon.Wright�_17
Square


Gordon.Wright�_18
Square


Gordon.Wright�_19
Square


Gordon.Wright�_20
FreeText
-3.7%�

Gordon.Wright�_21
FreeText
-19.1%�

Gordon.Wright�_22
FreeText
-16.0%�

Gordon.Wright�_23
FreeText
+16.4%�

Gordon.Wright�_24
FreeText
+17.6%�

Gordon.Wright�_25
FreeText
+1.1%�

Gordon.Wright�_26
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_27
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_28
Square


Gordon.Wright�_29
FreeText
-20.4%�


Safeguarding 17-22

Performance Indicator

AS12 &

Rate of adults aged 18-64 receiving care and
support to meet their well-being needs per 1,000
population

AS12 LOW is Good
15
0 Lo ANRN o e S
5 - — —
o
o miE(o|w|n|E
o|la o|la|&|a|ala
( 201617 2017/18 2013/19 2019,20
(]
o1
\I
AS13a ©

Number of carers (aged 18+) who received a carer's
assessment in their own right during the financial
year

A513a High is Good
200
N
m N
N
200 AN
\
200 N
N
AN N NN
i o m = ful ™ m =
o ‘ o o o o o o o
2012/19 2019/20

KEY

RAG

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

RAG

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

2017/2018 Quarter 2

GREEN

9.13

11.00

IMPROVING

1369

149958

2018/2019 Quarter 2

GREEN

8.33

13.00

IMPROVING

1255

150659

372

No Data

372

2019/2020 Quarter 2

GREEN

6.78

9.00

IMPROVING

1026

151228

RED

319

350

DECLINING

319

-18.6%

-30.8%

-18.2%

+0.4%

-14.2%

Comment-2019/2020

52 fewer carers assessments
completed compared to
2018/19. This can be attributed
directly to the sickness levels
within the integrated hubs, the
sickness issues are being
managed and it is hopeful next
quarter will see an improvement.


Gordon.Wright�_30
Square


Gordon.Wright�_31
Square


Gordon.Wright�_32
Square


Gordon.Wright�_33
Square


Gordon.Wright�_34
Square


Gordon.Wright�_35
Square


Gordon.Wright�_36
Square


Gordon.Wright�_37
Square


Gordon.Wright�_38
Square


Gordon.Wright�_39
Square


Gordon.Wright�_40
FreeText
-18.6%�

Gordon.Wright�_41
FreeText
-18.2%�

Gordon.Wright�_42
FreeText
+0.4%�

Gordon.Wright�_43
FreeText
372�

gordon.wright�
FreeText
-30.8%�

Gordon.Wright�_44
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_45
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_46
Square


Gordon.Wright�_47
FreeText
-14.2%�


Performance Indicator

AS14 ¢

The percentage of people who have completed
reablement who were receiving less care or no care
6 months after the end of reablement.

100 AS1A _HIGH is Good
0% ] — HHH
0% oo
705 ==
m-g | ]
505 b
|| m T g |m| T
o|lo|a o|la|lo|a|a
/ 2016/17 2019/20
@
o1
(ee]
AS15a 1@

The percentage of quantitative statutory performance
indicators where performance is broadly maintained
(within 5%) or improving compared to previous year's

performance
A5l15a High is Good
1005%
l _Q_ ]
75%
N "\\ ................
IEINENEN
N N
25% - _§_\§\
N N
05 W
SRR AN
2015/19 2018/20

KEY

RAG

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

RAG

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

2017/2018 Quarter 2

GREEN

82.54%

75.00%

IMPROVING

293

355

2018/2019 Quarter 2

GREEN

87.68%

80.00%

IMPROVING

249

284

GREEN

85.71%

70.00%

No Data

2019/2020 Quarter 2

GREEN

96.00% +9.5%

80.00%

IMPROVING

216 -13.3%

225 -20.8%

GREEN

85.71% 0%

70.00%

STATIC

Comment-2019/2020


Gordon.Wright�_48
Square


Gordon.Wright�_49
Square


Gordon.Wright�_50
Square


Gordon.Wright�_51
Square


Gordon.Wright�_52
Square


Gordon.Wright�_53
Square


Gordon.Wright�_54
Square


Gordon.Wright�_55
Square


Gordon.Wright�_56
Square


Gordon.Wright�_57
Square


Gordon.Wright�_58
FreeText
+9.5%�

Gordon.Wright�_59
FreeText
-13.3%�

Gordon.Wright�_60
FreeText
-20.8%�

Gordon.Wright�_61
Square
0%�

Gordon.Wright�_62
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_63
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_64
Square



Safeguarding 17-22

Performance Indicator

AS9 @

The percentage of Deprivation of Liberty
Safeguarding (DoLS) Assessments completed in 21
days or less.

10664

755%

ASS

HIGH is Good

201718 201819

(0]

8Fs11 &

The number of children on the Local Authority's Child
Protection Register (CPR) at end of the period

CF511 Low is Good
275 —
o el
225 - —Q
N
. N
175 - AN
N
150 N
o o m T o o m T
5 ‘ 5| 5|8 | & ‘ 5 5 ‘ 5
2018/18 2019/20

KEY

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

RAG

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

2017/2018 Quarter 2

GREEN

60.81%

)
m
O

60.00%

DECLINING

270

444

2018/2019 Quarter 2

YA

70.00%

DECLINING

339

588

239

No Data

239

2019/2020 Quarter 2

51.79% -10.2%

)
m
(@)

70.00%

DECLINING

290 -14.5%

560 -4.8%

AMBER

272 +13.8%

260

DECLINING

272

Comment-2019/2020

Performance has dipped
compared with previous quarters
but this will improve with
permanent staff rather than staff
rotating into the team.

There has been anincrease in
the number of children placed on
the CP register but this is within
normal limits and is not a cause
for concern. Work is being
undertaken with social workers
on the threshold of significant
harm. There is a pattern of
numbers increasing when the
service is experiencing staffing
issues.


Gordon.Wright�_65
Square


Gordon.Wright�_66
Square


Gordon.Wright�_67
Square


Gordon.Wright�_68
Square


Gordon.Wright�_69
Square


Gordon.Wright�_70
Square


Gordon.Wright�_71
Square


Gordon.Wright�_72
Square


Gordon.Wright�_73
Square


Gordon.Wright�_74
Square


Gordon.Wright�_75
FreeText
-10.2%�

Gordon.Wright�_76
FreeText
-14.5%�

Gordon.Wright�_77
FreeText
-4.8%�

Gordon.Wright�_78
FreeText
+13.8%�

Gordon.Wright�_79
FreeText
239�

Gordon.Wright�_80
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_81
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_82
Square



Safeguarding 17-22

Performance Indicator

CFS14 ©

The percentage of decisions about a referral for care
and support received by Child and Family Services
which are taken within 24 hrs from receipt of referral.

CFS14 HIGH is Good
100.0%
o — — — — — L S—
98086
L R R Rl A A A A A A R
g|\o|o|&|g|g|o|a|lg|g|g|g|a|g|la|lg
2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20
¢
(0]
D
QFS16 ©

The percentage of initial core group meetings held
within 10 working days of the initial child protection
conference.

CFS16 HIGH is Good

1005 =

m__-_.“: ........... ‘____:____ ]

B0% H H H HHHHHH

0% H H H HHHHHH

BO%
A e A K R el R R DT e -l A e R s
g|&|o|&|8|la|la|a|la alala|alalals
2016/17 201718 2018/19 201920

KEY

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

RAG

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

2017/2018 Quarter 2

GREEN

100.00%

100.00%

STATIC

410

410

RED

83.05%

91.00%

DECLINING

98

118

2018/2019 Quarter 2

GREEN

100.00%

100.00%

STATIC

353

353

GREEN

97.47%

88.50%

IMPROVING

77

79

2019/2020 Quarter 2
AMBER
99.03% -1.0%
100.00%

DECLINING

305

308

AMBER

87.62%

90.00%

-13.6%

-12.7%

-10.1%

+1.7%

DECLINING

92

105

+19.5%

+32.9%

Comment-2019/2020

This figure is a result of one
family categorised as low priority
waiting 48 hours for a decison.
This indicator to be included in
the monthly performance report
to reinforce the importance of
this target being met. There were
no implications in terms of risk to
a child.

This indicator is just below target
and is again a result of the
pressures within the service
around staffing.


Gordon.Wright�_83
Square


Gordon.Wright�_84
Square


Gordon.Wright�_85
Square


Gordon.Wright�_86
Square


Gordon.Wright�_87
Square


Gordon.Wright�_88
Square


Gordon.Wright�_89
Square


Gordon.Wright�_90
Square


Gordon.Wright�_91
Square


Gordon.Wright�_92
Square


Gordon.Wright�_93
Square


Gordon.Wright�_94
Square


Gordon.Wright�_95
FreeText
-1.0%�

Gordon.Wright�_96
FreeText
-13.6%�

Gordon.Wright�_97
FreeText
-12.7%�

Gordon.Wright�_98
FreeText
-10.1%�

Gordon.Wright�_99
FreeText
+1.7%�

Gordon.Wright�_100
FreeText
+19.5%�

Gordon.Wright�_101
FreeText
+32.9%�

Gordon.Wright�_102
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_103
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_104
Square



Safeguarding 17-22

CFS18 &

Performance Indicator

The rate of looked after children (LAC) per 10,000 of
the 0-17 Swansea population at end of the period.

CF518 LOW is Good
120
115
110
105 -
N
100 N
g5 10N I
N
0 TN
25
oo e
gla|a
2016/17
(0]
D
EFS19 &

The rate of children on the Local Authority's Child
Protection Register per 10,000 of the 0-17 Swansea

population.
CF519 LOW is Good
ol Rl ol el ] R
S|&|&|5|&| 8| 5|88
2016/17 201718 2018/19 2019/20

KEY

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

RAG

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

2017/2018 Quarter 2

GREEN

102.00

108.00

IMPROVING

478

47026

RED

58.27

54.00

DECLINING

274

47026

2018/2019 Quarter 2

RED

114.87

109.00

DECLINING

543

47272

GREEN

50.56

55.00

IMPROVING

239

47272

116.34

110.00

DECLINING

549

47189

AMBER

57.64

55.00

DECLINING

272

47189

Py
m
(@)

2019/2020 Quarter 2

+1.3%

+0.9%

+1.1%

-0.2%

+14.0%

+13.8%

-0.2%

Comment-2019/2020

There has been a recent
reduction in the LAC population
and itis currently stabilising.
There is a safe LAC reduction
strategy in place whichis
monitored monthly through the
strategic LAC meeting. The
current pressures relate to
children under 2yrs of age.

There has been anincrease in
the number of children placed on
the CP register but this is within
normal limits and is not a cause
for concern. Work is being
undertaken with social workers
on the threshold of significant
harm. There is a pattern of
numbers increasing when the
service is experiencing staffing
issues.


Gordon.Wright�_105
Square


Gordon.Wright�_106
Square


Gordon.Wright�_107
Square


Gordon.Wright�_108
Square


Gordon.Wright�_109
Square


Gordon.Wright�_110
Square


Gordon.Wright�_111
Square


Gordon.Wright�_112
Square


Gordon.Wright�_113
Square


Gordon.Wright�_114
Square


Gordon.Wright�_115
Square


Gordon.Wright�_116
Square


Gordon.Wright�_117
FreeText
+1.3%�

Gordon.Wright�_118
FreeText
+0.9%�

Gordon.Wright�_119
FreeText
+1.1%�

Gordon.Wright�_120
FreeText
-0.2%�

Gordon.Wright�_121
FreeText
+14.0%�

Gordon.Wright�_122
FreeText
+13.8%�

Gordon.Wright�_123
FreeText
-0.2%�

Gordon.Wright�_124
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_125
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_126
Square



Safeguarding 17-22

Performance Indicator

CFS19a ¢

The percentage of visits to children on the Child
Protection Register (CPR) which were not overdue.

CF519a Low is Good
1005 _
- N % o T
NINIR
N N N N
*NNYN N1
o 1N > N N
o | m | m = | o | m _——
| sl sl sl sl s58|las| 5| 8
«f 201920 2018/20
R
CFs2 &
The number of Looked After Children (LAC) at end of
the period.
2 Low is Good
&00
EE‘U o
IR
N N
500 N }‘
N
450 NN
T | Z g T
=) o 5 =
2018/19

KEY

RAG

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

RAG

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

2017/2018 Quarter2  2018/2019 Quarter 2

72.38%

No Data

173

239

543

No Data

543

2019/2020 Quarter 2

GREEN

90.42% +24.9%

90.00%
236 +36.4%
261 +9.2%

(N=D)
549 +1.1%
520

DECLINING

549

Comment-2019/2020

There has been a recent
reduction in the LAC population
and itis currently stabilising.
There is a safe LAC reduction
strategy in place whichis
monitored monthly through the
strategic LAC meeting. The
current pressures relate to
children under 2yrs of age.


Gordon.Wright�_127
Square


Gordon.Wright�_128
Square


Gordon.Wright�_129
Square


Gordon.Wright�_130
Square


Gordon.Wright�_131
Square


Gordon.Wright�_132
Square


Gordon.Wright�_133
Square


Gordon.Wright�_134
Square
72.38%�

Gordon.Wright�_135
Square


Gordon.Wright�_136
Square


Gordon.Wright�_137
Square


Gordon.Wright�_138
Square


Gordon.Wright�_139
FreeText
+24.9%�

Gordon.Wright�_140
FreeText
+36.4%�

Gordon.Wright�_141
FreeText
+9.2%�

Gordon.Wright�_142
FreeText
543�

Gordon.Wright�_143
FreeText
+1.1%�

Gordon.Wright�_144
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_145
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_146
Square



Performance Indicator

CFS20 &

The rate of Children in Need (CiN) with a care and
support plan per 10,000 of the 0-17 Swansea
population at end of the period.

CF520 LOW is Good
N
N
»
»
N
N N
NN
N
bl T I o e B o B B B e R R
HEEIE EIEE EEEEEIEEEE
2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019,20
[¢)
()]
BFs20a &

The number of Children in Need (CiN) with a care
and support plan at end of the period.

CF520a Low is Good
200
50 TN
o S_\ N
750 - Q ﬁ_%_
700 - —§—§ N
E50 - ".:; \—%—
y NN
600
SIS E|E E 582
HEODBBE
2018/13 2015/20

KEY

RAG

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

RAG

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

2017/2018 Quarter 2

GREEN

212.65

220.00

IMPROVING

1000

47026

2018/2019 Quarter 2

GREEN

186.79

205.00

IMPROVING

883

47272

883

No Data

883

2019/2020 Quarter 2

GREEN

156.18 -16.4%

170.00 -171%

IMPROVING
737 -16.5%
47189 -0.2%

GREEN

737 -16.5%

800

IMPROVING

737

Comment-2019/2020


Gordon.Wright�_147
Square


Gordon.Wright�_148
Square


Gordon.Wright�_149
Square


Gordon.Wright�_150
Square


Gordon.Wright�_151
Square


Gordon.Wright�_152
Square


Gordon.Wright�_153
Square


Gordon.Wright�_154
Square


Gordon.Wright�_155
Square


Gordon.Wright�_156
Square


Gordon.Wright�_157
FreeText
-16.4%�

Gordon.Wright�_158
FreeText
-17.1%�

Gordon.Wright�_159
FreeText
-16.5%�

Gordon.Wright�_160
FreeText
-0.2%�

Gordon.Wright�_161
FreeText
-16.5%�

Gordon.Wright�_162
FreeText
883�

Gordon.Wright�_163
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_164
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_165
Square



Safeguarding 17-22

Performance Indicator KEY 2017/2018 Quarter 2 2018/2019 Quarter 2 2019/2020 Quarter 2 Comment-2019/2020

CFS23a & This is very slightly above target
RAG RED and demonstrates the complexity
of work presenting at the front
door. This will be an important

The percentage of contacts to the Child & Family IAA
(Information, Advice and Assistance) Hub that are
subsequently passed on for formal assessment.

Result 12.60% '10'3% indicator to monitor the impact of
CF523a Low is Good the early help hubs following the
15% Target 10.00% go live date in February 2020.
5 %] -
SN weromG
Trend No Data IMPROVING
NN
5\56 —_— | S
% § * § Num 353 308 -12.7%
= N N N N
. o m = o o m =
. 181818 |8185]818 | pen 2802 2727 2.7%
& 2018/19 2019/20
(0]
BFs23b © See CFS23a
The number of contacts to the Child & Family IAA RAG RED
(Information, Advice and Assistance) Hub that are
subsequently passed on for formal assessment. Result 353 308 12.7%
CF523b Low is Good
0 Target 280
200 | _§_\ N
200 % §_% Trend No Data
N
100 % \§ %
N § % Num 353 308
a P :\ \\
i i m =
=] =] =] =] Den
2019,/20



Gordon.Wright�_166
Square


Gordon.Wright�_167
Square


Gordon.Wright�_168
Square


Gordon.Wright�_169
Square


Gordon.Wright�_170
Square


Gordon.Wright�_171
Square


Gordon.Wright�_172
Square


Gordon.Wright�_173
Square


Gordon.Wright�_174
FreeText
-10.3%�

Gordon.Wright�_175
FreeText
12.60%�

Gordon.Wright�_176
FreeText
-12.7%�

Gordon.Wright�_177
FreeText
-2.7%�

Gordon.Wright�_178
FreeText
353�

Gordon.Wright�_179
FreeText
-12.7%�

Gordon.Wright�_180
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_181
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_182
Square



Performance Indicator KEY 2017/2018 Quarter 2 2018/2019 Quarter2  2019/2020 Quarter 2 Comment-2019/2020

CFS23c &

The percentage of referrals to Child & Family RAG GREEN
Services that were received with 12 months of the
previous referral.

Result 18.98% 10.39% -45.3%
CFS23c Low is Good
o E Target 15.00%
15% N
N
10% §_§_‘: Trend No Data IMPROVING
NN
o | N N \_
§ % N Num 67 32 -52.2%
05 My '\\ Y
I R ‘ T e | v o oz
| 515313 5815|533 pen 353 308 12.7%
g 2019/20 2019/20
@
BFs24 ©
The total number of children with a care and support RAG GREEN
plan at the end of the period.
Result 1623 1540 -5.1%
CF524 Low is Good
1,700
Target 1600
1,800

Trend No Data IMPROVING

Num 1623 1540

1,400

H
g
|

R/ /77 /77777,

atr3a
otra
atrl

atrl

Den

b
(o]
B
B
g
&



Gordon.Wright�_183
Square


Gordon.Wright�_184
Square


Gordon.Wright�_185
Square


Gordon.Wright�_186
Square


Gordon.Wright�_187
Square


Gordon.Wright�_188
Square


Gordon.Wright�_189
Square


Gordon.Wright�_190
Square


Gordon.Wright�_191
FreeText
18.98%�

Gordon.Wright�_192
FreeText
-45.3%�

Gordon.Wright�_193
FreeText
-52.2%�

Gordon.Wright�_194
FreeText
-12.7%�

Gordon.Wright�_195
FreeText
1623�

Gordon.Wright�_196
FreeText
-5.1%�

Gordon.Wright�_197
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_198
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_199
Square



Safeguarding 17-22

Performance Indicator KEY 2017/2018 Quarter2  2018/2019 Quarter2  2019/2020 Quarter 2 Comment-2019/2020
Measure 18 @ As part of the adult services
The percentage of adult protection enquiries RAG GREEN AMBER AMBER restructure, a safeguarding team
completed within 7 days is going to be created which will
Result 94.64% 89.93% 86.13% -4.2% focus onimproving this figure
Measure 18 HIGH is Good
1005 — Target 90.00% 90.00% 90.00%
0% [« g e
805 A Trend DECLINING DECLINING DECLINING
TO% HHHHH
60% A0nnn Num 300 259 298 +15.1%
503
d g migg|dnE|d(Y 0 (D m|E
Gl5|olo|gla|la|o|58|5/5|5|8185|8 pen 317 288 346 +20.1%
| 2018/17 201718 2018,/19 2019,/20
(o)
%Ieasure 19 (PAMO025) & Staff shortages within the
The rate of delayed transfers of care for social care RAG RED GREEN RED domicilary care sector continues
reasons per 1,000 population aged 75 or over to impact this service. However
we have recently re-tendered the
Result 3.18 2.78 6.23 124% senvice splitting the providers
Measure 19 LOW is Good into geographical zones which is
Target 200 3.00 3.00 faxpected to have a positive
impact on delays.
Trend DECLINING IMPROVING DECLINING
Num 69 61 139 +128%
Den 21672 21956 22304 +1.6%



Gordon.Wright�_200
Square


Gordon.Wright�_201
Square


Gordon.Wright�_202
Square


Gordon.Wright�_203
Square


Gordon.Wright�_204
Square


Gordon.Wright�_205
Square


Gordon.Wright�_206
Square


Gordon.Wright�_207
Square


Gordon.Wright�_208
Square


Gordon.Wright�_209
Square


Gordon.Wright�_210
Square


Gordon.Wright�_211
Square


Gordon.Wright�_212
Square


Gordon.Wright�_213
FreeText
As part of the adult services restructure, a safeguarding team is going to be created which will focus on improving this figure�

Gordon.Wright�_214
FreeText
-4.2%�

Gordon.Wright�_215
FreeText
+15.1%�

Gordon.Wright�_216
FreeText
+20.1%�

Gordon.Wright�_217
FreeText
+128%�

Gordon.Wright�_218
FreeText
+124%�

Gordon.Wright�_219
FreeText
+1.6%�

Gordon.Wright�_220
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_221
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_222
Square



Safeguarding 17-22

Performance Indicator KEY 2017/2018 Quarter2  2018/2019 Quarter2  2019/2020 Quarter 2 Comment-2019/2020
Measure 24 (PAM028) © This figure is lower than we
The percentage of assessments completed for RAG RED RED RED would want but again reflects the
children within statutory timescales pressures within the service
around staffing.
Result 70.00% 72.37% 74.75% +3.3%
Measure 24 HIGH iz Good
1005
e Target 87.00% 90.00% 90.00%
NRRR
0% - ‘S‘S‘S Trend DECLINING IMPROVING IMPROVING
405 NN
NN N
20% TR Num 273 165 148 -10.3%
o LN B N N
EIZ|IEIEIE E
z|5|5|3| 5 = Den 390 228 198 -13.2%
2016/17 201718
D
o))
\‘
Measure 27 & This is in a fluctuating figure and
The percentage of re-registrations of children on RAG GREEN relates to family size.
local authority Child Protection Registers (CPR) at
end of the period. Result 2.47% 9.18% +272%
CFS23c Low is Good
o Target 20.00%
20%
&Y
5% % % Trend No Data DECLINING
10% -_§ §
N !
s '—§ | \\\ N | Num 2 9 +350%
N NN N
T ow ‘ O - I R ‘ o ‘ T
515|353 515833 pen 81 98 +21.0%
2018/18 2015/20



Gordon.Wright�_223
Square


Gordon.Wright�_224
Square


Gordon.Wright�_225
Square


Gordon.Wright�_226
Square


Gordon.Wright�_227
Square


Gordon.Wright�_228
Square


Gordon.Wright�_229
Square


Gordon.Wright�_230
Square


Gordon.Wright�_231
Square


Gordon.Wright�_232
Square


Gordon.Wright�_233
FreeText
+3.3%�

Gordon.Wright�_234
FreeText
-10.3%�

Gordon.Wright�_235
FreeText
-13.2%�

Gordon.Wright�_236
FreeText
2.47%�

Gordon.Wright�_237
FreeText
+272%�

Gordon.Wright�_238
FreeText
+350%�

Gordon.Wright�_239
FreeText
+21.0%�

Gordon.Wright�_240
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_241
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_242
Square



Safeguarding 17-22

Performance Indicator

Measure 28 &

The average length of time for all children who were
on the Child Protection Register (CPR) during the
period

Measure 28 LOW is Good
300
250 ] —
N
[
200 RN - H
\
150 P H MH
3
100 P
g Ip|E(Y|N(R(E| R P|E|D|W O
g|lo|o|g|o|o|g|o|la|ag|o|lg|a|a|la|la
201617 201718 201819 2019/20
(0]
[*)]
(o]

PAMO029 (Measure 33) &

Percentage of Looked After Children (LAC) at end of
the period who have had three or more placements
during the year (formerly SCC004)

CF523c Low is Good
15%
1054 —S § ]
NI
NN
NI
05 % \.\ )
= o 0 T = o 0 T
=] =] =] =) =] =] =] =)

KEY

RAG

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

2017/2018 Quarter 2

GREEN

190.90

300.00

IMPROVING

17372 .

2018/2019 Quarter 2

GREEN

218.12

300.00

DECLINING

20285

12.29%

No Data

545

2019/2020 Quarter 2

GREEN

245.98

300.00

DECLINING

14021 -31.6%

57 -39.4%

GREEN

9.47% -23.0%

12.00%
52 -22.4%
549 +0.7%

+12.9%

Comment-2019/2020

This is a fluctuating figure that is
well within range.


Gordon.Wright�_243
Square


Gordon.Wright�_244
Square


Gordon.Wright�_245
Square


Gordon.Wright�_246
Square


Gordon.Wright�_247
Square


Gordon.Wright�_248
Square


Gordon.Wright�_249
Square


Gordon.Wright�_250
Square


Gordon.Wright�_251
Square


Gordon.Wright�_252
Square


Gordon.Wright�_253
FreeText
+12.9%�

Gordon.Wright�_254
FreeText
-31.6%�

Gordon.Wright�_255
FreeText
-39.4%�

Gordon.Wright�_256
FreeText
12.29%�

Gordon.Wright�_257
FreeText
-23.0%�

Gordon.Wright�_258
FreeText
-22.4%�

Gordon.Wright�_259
FreeText
+0.7%�

Gordon.Wright�_260
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_261
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_262
Square



Safeguarding 17-22

Performance Indicator

SAFE27 ©

Total number of staff who have completed the
corporate mandatory safeguarding awareness
training (excludes school based staff)

SAFE27 HIGH is Good

300

200

100

0 4
g|lw|(m|E |
g|la|&a|g| o

2017/18

)

D

Q©AFES8b

Percentage of Elected Members who have received

training in safeguarding vulnerable people

SAFEShH HIGH is Good
1005 T
ol |n|s
og|o|g|o|ga|la
201617 201718 201819 2019/20

KEY

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

RAG

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

2017/2018 Quarter 2

RED

227

250

No Data

227

GREEN

84.72%

50.00%

No Data

72

2018/2019 Quarter 2

RED

136

175

DECLINING

136

RED

83.30%

90.00%

DECLINING

60

72

2019/2020 Quarter 2

RED

85

175

DECLINING

85

GREEN

100.00%

100.00%

IMPROVING

-37.5%

+20.0%

72 +20.0%

72

Comment-2019/2020

40 staff completed both adult
and child e-learning modules: 45
staff completed one e-learning
module: 0 staff completed face
to face training. Results from e-
learning and Oracle


Gordon.Wright�_263
Square


Gordon.Wright�_264
Square


Gordon.Wright�_265
Square


Gordon.Wright�_266
Square


Gordon.Wright�_267
Square


Gordon.Wright�_268
Square


Gordon.Wright�_269
Square


Gordon.Wright�_270
Square


Gordon.Wright�_271
Square


Gordon.Wright�_272
Square


Gordon.Wright�_273
Square


Gordon.Wright�_274
Square


Gordon.Wright�_275
Square


Gordon.Wright�_276
Square


Gordon.Wright�_277
Square


Gordon.Wright�_278
Square


Gordon.Wright�_279
FreeText
-37.5%�

Gordon.Wright�_280
FreeText
+20.0%�

Gordon.Wright�_281
FreeText
+20.0%�

Gordon.Wright�_282
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_283
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_284
Square



Safeguarding 17-22

Performance Indicator

SCCO013ai

The percentage of children on the Child Protection

Register (CPR) at the end of the period allocated to

a social worker

:

1008

High is Good

LAY

95% -

O3 [

- W
atr2 W//j
atrd W

2018/19

atrl

atr2
atr3

2019/20

atrd

) of

SCCO013aii 1

The percentage of Looked After Children (LAC) at
the end of the period allocated to a social worker

SCCO13aii
10606

High is Good

/777

95% -

/77

U3 [ A

an W
atrz V///,//'j
Otrad WT}W

2018/19

atrl

atr2
atr3

2019,/20

atrd

KEY

RAG

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

RAG

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

2017/2018 Quarter 2

2018/2019 Quarter 2

100.00%

No Data

239

239

99.63%

No Data

543

545

2019/2020 Quarter 2
AMBER
96.69% 3.3%
100.00%

DECLINING

263 +10.0%
272 +13.8%
AMBER
99.45% -0.2%
100.00%

546 +0.6%
549 +0.7%

Comment-2019/2020

These cases were managed via
the duty social worker, which is
not ideal but did ensure oversight
and that visits were undertaken.
Remedial measures were
immediately put in place to draft
social workers in from other
teams to ensure all CP cases
are allocated in a meaningful
way.

This related to three children
which were managed via the duty
Social Worker, which is not ideal
but did ensure oversight and that
visits were undertaken.
Remedial measures were
immediately put in place to draft
social workers in from other
teams to ensure all LAC cases
are allocated in a meaningful
way.


Gordon.Wright�_285
Square


Gordon.Wright�_286
Square


Gordon.Wright�_287
Square


Gordon.Wright�_288
Square


Gordon.Wright�_289
Square


Gordon.Wright�_290
Square


Gordon.Wright�_291
Square


Gordon.Wright�_292
Square


Gordon.Wright�_293
FreeText
100.00%�

Gordon.Wright�_294
FreeText
-3.3%�

Gordon.Wright�_295
FreeText
+10.0%�

Gordon.Wright�_296
FreeText
+13.8%�

Gordon.Wright�_297
FreeText
99.63%�

Gordon.Wright�_298
FreeText
-0.2%�

Gordon.Wright�_299
FreeText
+0.6%�

Gordon.Wright�_300
FreeText
+0.7%�

Gordon.Wright�_301
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_302
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_303
Square



Performance Indicator KEY 2017/2018 Quarter 2 2018/2019 Quarter2  2019/2020 Quarter 2 Comment-2019/2020
SUSC5 ©

The number of new introductions recorded by Local RAG GREEN GREEN GREEN
Area Coordinators

SUSCS HIGH is Good
200 o
Target 60 75 125 +66.7%
150 N
100 Trend IMPROVING IMPROVING IMPROVING
e
20 =
Hﬂﬂ : 2 Num 63 114 157
(1]
SRR ol e "._""E
SIEIEIFIEIEIELE
Den
2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20

T/, o


Gordon.Wright�_304
Square


Gordon.Wright�_305
Square


Gordon.Wright�_306
Square


Gordon.Wright�_307
Square


Gordon.Wright�_308
Square


Gordon.Wright�_309
Square


Gordon.Wright�_310
Square


Gordon.Wright�_311
Square


Gordon.Wright�_312
Square


Gordon.Wright�_313
FreeText
+37.7%�

Gordon.Wright�_314
FreeText
+66.7%�

Gordon.Wright�_315
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_316
Square



Education & Skills 17-22

Swansea's performance was above the expected benchmark level at key stage 4. Attainment of primary age pupils at foundation phase and key stage 2 indicate
that, although targets were not met, outcomes suggested increased confidence in the accuracy of teacher assessments in Swansea as well as the impact of
changes in assessment areas in foundation phase.

The attainment of learners who are looked after children is variable. Education staff reported a number of factors that can affect this performance indicator each
year due to the small numbers of learners involved including a higher number of pupils with additional learning needs, late arrivals from other counties, and a
volatile population who move in and out of care which can disrupt education at key points in their educational career particularly in adolescence.

Attendance in Swansea remains comparatively high.

Partneriaeth Sgiliau Abertawe/Swansea Skills Partnership (PSA) meets regularly and has two, clear workstreams - digital capacity and advice, information and
guidance for vocational education and careers.

Looking forward the implementation of the Additional Learning Needs and Education Tribunal Act 2018 and Curriculum for Wales 2022 under the Welsh
Government's National Mission will pose challenges and opportunities that will need reflecting in the performance frameworks of the Education Department.

Measures of inclusion such as attendance, exclusions and numbers of learners who are educated otherwise than at school continues to be monitored.

U
'@ere is an increasing emphasis on progress made and value added within a more localised curriculum and service offer.

~
N


Gordon.Wright�_317
Square



Education & Skills 17-22

Performance against Target
2019/2020 Quarter 2

GREEN-2

RED-3

€/ abed

AMBER-1

Performance compared to same Period of previous
year

2019/2020 Quarter 2

NO TREND-2

DECLINING-4



Gordon.Wright�_318
Square


Gordon.Wright�_319
Square


Gordon.Wright�_320
Square



Education & Skills 17-22

Performance Indicator

BBMA4 ¢

The number of apprenticeships or trainee starts in
the Council

BEMAA HIGH is Good

l—':|-
=
[=§

\I
£DU015a ©

The percentage of final statements of Special
Education Need (SEN) issued within 26 weeks
including exceptions

NO GRAPH DISPLAYED
FIRST YEAR OF REPORTING

KEY

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

RAG

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

2017/2018 Quarter2  2018/2019 Quarter2  2019/2020 Quarter 2 Comment-2019/2020
The PI records new starts with
CIREEL =2 the Council and is currently
under review to include the
strategy. This will include the
10 o5 14 44,00, ECTUItMeNt of'tralnee.s and “in
work” apprentices which are
currently not recorded in the PI
19 17 14

This quarter covers school
holidays when there are less
staff, However, there are
capacity issues within the team
due to the volume of operational
day to day work as well as a
10.00% backlog of Statements and
Amendments which are
significantly affecting the ability
No Data of the team to reduce the
backlog and improve the PI.
Secondly the system is largely
1 paper driven and there is no
capacity to review the systems to
improve efficiency without
compromising the LA statutory
duties further.

1.90%

52


Gordon.Wright�_321
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_322
FreeText
NO GRAPH DISPLAYED�

Gordon.Wright�_323
FreeText
FIRST YEAR OF REPORTING�

Gordon.Wright�_324
Square


Gordon.Wright�_325
FreeText
The PI records new starts with the Council and is currently under review to include the wider apprentice and trainee strategy. This will include the recruitment of trainees and “in work” apprentices which are currently not recorded in the PI�


Education & Skills 17-22

Performance Indicator

EDUO15b ©

The percentage of final statements of Special
Education Need (SEN) issued within 26 weeks
excluding exceptions

NO GRAPH DISPLAYED
FIRST YEAR OF REPORTING

abed

\I
£DU016a (PAM007) ¢
Percentage of pupil attendance in primary schools

EDUD1Ea [Termly) HIGH is Good

1008

i
=

bl
o | o

g
g

2016/17

KEY

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

RAG

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

2017/2018 Quarter 2

GREEN

94.28%

94.00%

DECLINING

1750817

1857056

2018/2019 Quarter 2

GREEN

94.03%

94.00%

DECLINING

1979983

2105770

2019/2020 Quarter 2

5.00%

20.00%

No Data

AMBER

93.64%

94.00%

DECLINING

1618646

1728527

)
m
O

-0.4%

-18.2%

-17.9%

Comment-2019/2020

This quarter covers school
holidays when there are less
staff, However, there are
capacity issues within the team
due to the volume of operational
day to day work as well as a
backlog of Statements and
Amendments which are
significantly affecting the ability
of the team to reduce the
backlog and improve the PlI.
Secondly the system is largely
paper driven and there is no
capacity to review the systems to
improve efficiency without
compromising the LA statutory
duties further.

Early analysis indicates a slight
increase in holidays taken during
the second half of the summer
term. There are well-established
referral procedures embedded
to address poor individual
attendance. Attendance officers
accompany school support visits
where attendance is a concern,
in addition to reviews taking
place. The Education Welfare
Service has undergone a review
in order to establish if its current
model provides the most
effective service. A consultation
has been launched.


Gordon.Wright�_326
Square


Gordon.Wright�_327
Square


Gordon.Wright�_328
Square


Gordon.Wright�_329
Square


Gordon.Wright�_330
Square


Gordon.Wright�_331
Square


Gordon.Wright�_332
Square


Gordon.Wright�_333
Square


Gordon.Wright�_334
FreeText
-0.4%�

Gordon.Wright�_335
FreeText
-18.2%�

Gordon.Wright�_336
FreeText
-17.9%�

Gordon.Wright�_337
FreeText
NO GRAPH DISPLAYED�

Gordon.Wright�_338
FreeText
FIRST YEAR OF REPORTING�

Gordon.Wright�_339
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_340
Square



Education & Skills 17-22

Performance Indicator

EDUO16b (PAMO008) @
Percentage of pupil attendance in secondary schools

10066

EDUO16E [Termily)

HIGH is Good

i I
g|&|&

2016/17

atrl
atr2
atr3

2019/20

O

D

\I
Bovo7 o

The number of training and employment person
weeks created by BBM for unemployed and
economically inactive.

POVOT

HIGH is Good

2019,/20

KEY

RAG

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

RAG

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

2017/2018 Quarter 2

GREEN

94.10%

93.00%

DECLINING

540502

574398

GREEN

1173

750

No Data

1173

2018/2019 Quarter 2

GREEN

94.39%

93.00%

IMPROVING

660063

699308

GREEN

1181

1000

IMPROVING

1181,

GREEN

93.44%

93.00%

DECLINING

443660

474832

RED

863

1000

DECLINING

863

2019/2020 Quarter 2

-1.0%

-32.8%

-32.1%

-26.9%

Comment-2019/2020

There are well-established
referral procedures embedded
to address poor individual
attendance. Attendance officers
accompany school support visits
where attendance is a concern,
in addition to reviews taking
place. The Education Welfare
Service has undergone a review
in order to establish if its current
model provides the most
effective service. A consultation
has been launched on
recommended models of
effective future provision.

There has been a delay in the
start of a number of new projects,
which has reduced the number of
opportunities for training and
work. | envisage we will catch up
on this delay in the weeks and
months ahead.


Gordon.Wright�_341
Square


Gordon.Wright�_342
Square


Gordon.Wright�_343
Square


Gordon.Wright�_344
Square


Gordon.Wright�_345
Square


Gordon.Wright�_346
Square


Gordon.Wright�_347
Square


Gordon.Wright�_348
Square


Gordon.Wright�_349
Square


Gordon.Wright�_350
Square


Gordon.Wright�_351
Square


Gordon.Wright�_352
Square


Gordon.Wright�_353
Square


Gordon.Wright�_354
Square


Gordon.Wright�_355
Square


Gordon.Wright�_356
FreeText
-1.0%�

Gordon.Wright�_357
FreeText
-32.8%�

Gordon.Wright�_358
FreeText
-32.1%�

Gordon.Wright�_359
FreeText
-26.9%�

Gordon.Wright�_360
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_361
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_362
Square



Economy & Infrastructure 17-22

The vast majority of targets have been met again this quarter. Furthermore, trends are predominantly upwards on the quarter, and against this time last year.
However, the Percentage of all major applications with an economic imperative that are approved has missed target again. Only 3 major applications were refused
as these were unacceptable in planning policy terms and negotiations could not provide for a positive outcome. Our major regeneration priorities continue to make
substantial progress. Swansea Central Phase 1 enabling works are largely complete, with excellent progress achieved on the listed wall piling works. The main
contract will be awarded subject to Cabinet approval of the FPR7 report in November. The Kingsway infrastructure project continues to make excellent progress
on site. Further market testing and design works have been carried out on the Employment Hub building, which has included a detailed Stakeholder consultation
exercise. The Pre-planning application consultation will commence in quarter 3. At Hafod Copperworks, the HLF Stage 2 Powerhouse project procurement is
nearing completion. The Morfa bascule bridge has been successfully lifted and repair works are underway. Further discussions have taken place with the NZ
Skyline project team and a board decision has been received to progress the funding application process with Welsh Government. The Felindre inward investment
construction works are now nearing completion for hand-over to the occupier in Q3. A report has been prepared to progress the launch & marketing exercise for
strategic development sites and will be reported to Cabinet in November. Significant progress has been made in the preparation of funding bids to secure the
restoration of Palace Theatre and Albert Hall listed buildings. The Wind Street environmental enhancement preferred scheme has been approved and detailed
designs will now be prepared.

The WHQS programme is continuing to deliver major repairs and improvements to council homes ensuring they are in a good state of repair, thermally efficient,
safe and secure and meeting the needs of individuals. To date the WHQS programme has delivered £18.3m of repairs and improvements. In quarters 1 and 2, the
Council has delivered 932 new kitchens, 866 new bathrooms and undertaken major thermally insulation improvements to 145 homes. Further work is taking place
tg;renew roofs, renew electrical wiring in homes, provide new efficient gas boilers and improve garden boundaries and paving. The Council is progressing well with
if§ fire safety improvements, particularly with its installation of sprinkler systems in high rise blocks and sheltered accommodation. The Council has been working
with fire protection company Aico in developing and trialling new smoke alarms systems that continually monitor alarms ensuring they are operational and report
intidence of fire via instant text message and email; this system offers a real opportunity to further improve fire safety in the home particularly for older and more
vulnerable tenants. The WHQS schemes also provides major community benefits; in the 2nd quarter a 178 weeks of targeted recruitment and training were
delivered specifically for people who were unemployed and experiencing barriers to accessing the jobs market; 2 people from the local community have been
employed in this period and 15 people previously engaged for WHQS work have seen their employment continued with ongoing projects. Also as part of the
Council's commitment to innovative, energy efficient housing, a number of retrofit schemes are being carried out: there are 6 bungalows in Craig Cefn Parc
currently underway; 8 properties planned in Felindre and the Council has recently completed a project in Garnswlit to 10 properties. These schemes will test the
application of renewable technologies to existing inefficient housing, transforming them into some of the most energy efficient homes in the Council's housing
stock.

The Council's More Homes Programme, focussed on providing new build Council housing, continues to move forward at pace. Cabinet approved the Housing
Revenue Account Development Plan in February 2019. This sets out the programme to develop over 140 new homes up to 2022. The Council is currently looking
to increase this ambition, and will publish a 10 year delivery plan for affordable housing. Following on from the first passivhaus pilot at Colliers way, the second
phase of the More Homes project is underway at a further 2 sites at Parc Y Helyg and Colliers Way Phase 2. As part of this phase, 34 new homes will be built as
'Homes as Power Stations' using funds from a £1.5m Innovative Housing Programme grant from the Welsh Government. The homes will have innovative features
such as solar panels and battery-powered energy, as well as the inclusion of swift bricks to support biodiversity. Planning permission has been granted to convert
2 new family homes in West Cross as part of a refurbishment of a former social services building and a further 26 homes are planned for a new development in Hill
View Crescent & Beacons View Road in Clase. This scheme has also been awarded £1.5m of Innovative Housing Funding, which will fund the renewable
technologies to continue the Homes as Power Stations theme. This will also be the site of a new build Welsh medium primary school, and will provide an
opportunity to regenerate the area. Following publication of the HRA PIN to explore interest from potential partners in delivering a development programme across
around 30 potential HRA sites in phases, a Cabinet report is being prepared to outline the next steps in progressing the procurement of a development partner or


Gordon.Wright�_363
Square



partners. The aim will be to deliver mixed tenure housing on the Council owned sites, whilst maximising the delivery of affordable housing to meet local need.
The Council is also in the process of procuring a team to deliver a masterplan for the regeneration of a large HRA site, where refurbishment alone may not address
the issues.

8/ abed


Gordon.Wright�_364
Square



6/, abed

Performance against Target
2019/2020 Quarter 2

GREEN-5

Performance compared to same Period of previous
year

2019/2020 Quarter 2

NO TREND-1 \\

DECLINING-1 IMPROVING-3

STATIC-1


Gordon.Wright�_365
Square


Gordon.Wright�_366
Square


Gordon.Wright�_367
Square



Economy & Infrastructure 17-22

Performance Indicator

BBMA1 @

The number of projects with social benefit clauses
and Beyond Bricks & Mortar in their contracts

BEMAL HIGH is Good

atrl
atr2
atra
atrd

201718 2018/19 2019/20

The Percentage of all major applications with an
economic imperative that are approved

EC2 HIGH iz Good
100%
755 I HHH A
505 - T H B
255 - T H B
e
olo|mje|g|nn|eo|n|n
o|g| |88 &\ a|a|al&|a
2016/17 2017/18 201819

KEY

RAG

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

RAG

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

2017/2018 Quarter 2

GREEN

No Data

GREEN

100.00%

II |

85.00%

IMPROVING

| | I

2018/2019 Quarter 2

GREEN

2

IMPROVING

GREEN

100.00%

- (e)) -
N

90.00%

STATIC

2019/2020 Quarter 2 Comment-2019/2020

GREEN

2 0%

II

STATIC

Only 3 major applications were
refused. These were
unacceptable in planning policy
terms and negotiations could not
provide for a positive outcome.

67.00% -33.3%

90.00%

DECLINING

6 +20.0%

9 +80.0%


Gordon.Wright�_368
Square


Gordon.Wright�_369
Square


Gordon.Wright�_370
Square


Gordon.Wright�_371
Square


Gordon.Wright�_372
Square


Gordon.Wright�_373
Square


Gordon.Wright�_374
Square


Gordon.Wright�_375
Square


Gordon.Wright�_376
Square


Gordon.Wright�_377
Square


Gordon.Wright�_378
Square


Gordon.Wright�_379
Square


Gordon.Wright�_380
Square


Gordon.Wright�_381
Square


Gordon.Wright�_382
Square


Gordon.Wright�_383
FreeText
-33.3%�

Gordon.Wright�_384
Square


Gordon.Wright�_385
Square
90.00%�

Gordon.Wright�_386
Square
+20.0%�

Gordon.Wright�_387
Square
+80.0%�

Gordon.Wright�_388
Square
0%�

Gordon.Wright�_389
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_390
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_391
Square



Performance Indicator KEY 2017/2018 Quarter2  2018/2019 Quarter2  2019/2020 Quarter 2 Comment-2019/2020
EC5 © 38 - 40 Mariner Street
Amount of commercial floorspace (measured by sq RAG

m) created within the TRI (Targeted Regeneration
Investment) Programme target areas to

+100%
accommodate job creation Result 0 625
Target 825
NO GRAPH DISPLAYED
Trend No Data
FIRST YEAR OF REPORTING DATA

Num 0 825
o Den
QD
Q
D
=
EC6 © 33 Kingsway 4 units. 34
Number of hew housing units created in TRl target RAG GREEN Kingsway 4 units
areas as a result of Targeted Regeneration
Investment (TRI) Programme funding. Result 0 _+ 100%
NO GRAPH DISPLAYED
Target 8
FIRST YEAR OF REPORTING DATA
Trend No Data
Num 0 8

Den


Gordon.Wright�_392
Square


Gordon.Wright�_393
Square


Gordon.Wright�_394
Square


Gordon.Wright�_395
Square


Gordon.Wright�_396
Square


Gordon.Wright�_397
Square


Gordon.Wright�_398
Square


Gordon.Wright�_399
Square


Gordon.Wright�_400
Square
0�

Gordon.Wright�_401
Square
0�

Gordon.Wright�_402
Square
+100%�

Gordon.Wright�_403
Square
+100%�

Gordon.Wright�_404
FreeText
NO GRAPH DISPLAYED�

Gordon.Wright
FreeText
FIRST YEAR OF REPORTING DATA�

Gordon.Wright�_405
FreeText
NO GRAPH DISPLAYED�

Gordon.Wright�_406
FreeText
FIRST YEAR OF REPORTING DATA�

Gordon.Wright�_407
Square



Performance Indicator

EC7 &

Average Turnaround Time for Land Charge
Searches completed in the period

ECY Highis Good
12

Qtr2 Wm

Qtrd

0
= o T = o o
(5] (5] ] (5] (5] a
2018/19 2019/20
®
®
N
EP28 @

The percentage of all planning applications
determined within 8 weeks.

EP23 HIGH is Good

100%

o905 _

e Hadd Lt

o H H L

g0 H H L

505
gl ool |e|wo|E|e|w |
= A= iR= A= A=A == A= I R=1R=AR=1R=Ak=Ak=]
2016/17 201718 2018/19 2019/20

KEY

RAG

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

RAG

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

2017/2018 Quarter 2

GREEN

86.38%

80.00%

DECLINING

444

514

2018/2019 Quarter 2

No Data

8.00

GREEN

89.46%

80.00%

IMPROVING

467

522

2019/2020 Quarter 2

GREEN

4.19 -47.6%

10.00

IMPROVING

4.19

GREEN

90.46% +1.1%

80.00%

IMPROVING

474 +1.5%

524 +0.4%

Comment-2019/2020


Gordon.Wright�_408
Square


Gordon.Wright�_409
Square


Gordon.Wright�_410
Square


Gordon.Wright�_411
Square


Gordon.Wright�_412
Square


Gordon.Wright�_413
Square


Gordon.Wright�_414
Square


Gordon.Wright�_415
Square
IMPROVING�

Gordon.Wright�_416
Square
8.00�

Gordon.Wright�_417
Square
-47.6%�

Gordon.Wright�_418
Square
+1.1%�

Gordon.Wright�_419
Square
+1.5%�

Gordon.Wright�_420
Square
+0.4%�

Gordon.Wright�_421
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_422
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_423
Square



Tackling Poverty 17-22

The corporate plan sets out the council’s commitment to Tackle Poverty to ensure that every person in Swansea can achieve his or her potential. To meet this
commitment the corporate Tackling Poverty Strategy ensures that Tackling Poverty is everybody’s business.

The number of people gaining employment through Employability support, supports the well-being objective steps; ensuring that young people are able to
access employment, education and training after reaching 16 and, individuals are supported to overcome their barriers to employment through coordinated
person centre employability support. This is achieved through the Swansea Working coordinated employment approach and associated employability support
programmes of Communities for Work, Communities for Work Plus, Workways and Cam Nesa. Whilst the number of people gaining employment through
Employability Support indicator within the performance report is below target, it is due to a seasonal downturn in recruitment during the summer months and less
engagement from participants, often due to school holidays and caring commitments. There has been an increase between quarters and anticipate that the
results will increase in the next quarter.

The step to help address the impacts of Welfare reform, such as supporting people to claim the full benefits they are entitled to so that they are able to maximise
their income is reported through the amount of welfare benefits raised through securing rights and entitiements by the Welfare Rights team. The amount of
benefits secured is significantly higher than anticipated and the team have achieved a 96% success rate on appeals.

The performance indicator of Housing Benefit speed of processing and the average time for processing new claims has had an expected drop in performance
due to reduced resources and the more complex cases remain in Housing Benefit rather than those transferred to Universal Credit. At the end of September
there were 12,152 Universal Credit claimants in Swansea and it is expected to increase as more citizens move onto Universal Credit.

The impact of welfare reform changes has seen an increase in the number and complexity of welfare benefit enquiries we are dealing with. There is an increase
in rent arrears in the council and being reported by partner organisations. There is a significant increase in the use of foodbanks and a sample of Citizen’s Advice
clients showed almost three quarters of debts were priority debts of rent, council tax and benefit related debts. Additional activity to help address the impacts of
welfare reform include targeting support to cohorts affected by changes, training frontline staff and personalised support for citizens.

The performance indicator of Council Tax Reduction (CTR) speed of processing and average time for processing new claims is below the target, this is due to
the decision to use the Universal Credit information as the claim for CTR with the aim of maximising the period we can award the CTR. This decline in
performance will not impact on the well-being objective, as the applicant is better off as we are implementing more CTR for those who apply for it when they are
receiving UC.

The number of accredited qualifications achieved by adults with local Authority support has exceeded the target. This is due to the delivery of a comprehensive
sector specific training programme which many employability programme participants have accessed, including health and social care, site security, construction
and customer care. The partnership working between Swansea Working, Lifelong Learning, employability programmes and partners has led to greater
attendance and achievement of accredited training and qualifications. Additional training and work experience opportunities are being developed with the art,
culture and heritage partners which is supporting the steps to meet the well-being objective and will boost skills, confidence, self-esteem and aspiration.

Planned developments that will help us meet the Well-being Objective include the continued work of the corporate cross directorate Poverty Forum with actions
including our approach to managing personal debts to the council, reducing evictions and reducing barriers to services due to income poverty. The well attended
Poverty Partnership Forum continues to develop and deliver initiatives to tackle poverty including entrepreneurship support, focus on food poverty and
coordinated crisis support.

Commissioning reviews focused on Financial Inclusion and Employability Support have started to determine the future shape and delivery of support to ensure
that services are targeting the most vulnerable, outcomes are maximised and that we are supporting citizens out of poverty.


Gordon.Wright�_424
Square


gordon.wright�_1
Square


gordon.wright�_2
Square
The corporate plan sets out the council’s commitment to Tackle Poverty to ensure that every person in Swansea can achieve his or her potential. To meet this commitment the corporate Tackling Poverty Strategy ensures that Tackling Poverty is everybody’s business. 
The number of people gaining employment through Employability support, supports the well-being objective steps; ensuring that young people are able to access employment, education and training after reaching 16 and, individuals are supported to overcome their barriers to employment through coordinated person centre employability support. This is achieved through the Swansea Working coordinated employment approach and associated employability support programmes of Communities for Work, Communities for Work Plus, Workways and Cam Nesa. Whilst the number of people gaining employment through Employability Support indicator within the performance report is below target, it is due to a seasonal downturn in recruitment during the summer months and less engagement from participants, often due to school holidays and caring commitments. There has been an increase between quarters and anticipate that the results will increase in the next quarter.   
The step to help address the impacts of Welfare reform, such as supporting people to claim the full benefits they are entitled to so that they are able to maximise their income is reported through the amount of welfare benefits raised through securing rights and entitlements by the Welfare Rights team. The amount of benefits secured is significantly higher than anticipated and the team have achieved a 96% success rate on appeals.  
The performance indicator of Housing Benefit speed of processing and the average time for processing new claims has had an expected drop in performance due to reduced resources and the more complex cases remain in Housing Benefit rather than those transferred to Universal Credit. At the end of September there were 12,152 Universal Credit claimants in Swansea and it is expected to increase as more citizens move onto Universal Credit. 
The impact of welfare reform changes has seen an increase in the number and complexity of welfare benefit enquiries we are dealing with. There is an increase in rent arrears in the council and being reported by partner organisations. There is a significant increase in the use of foodbanks and a sample of Citizen’s Advice clients showed almost three quarters of debts were priority debts of rent, council tax and benefit related debts. Additional activity to help address the impacts of welfare reform include targeting support to cohorts affected by changes, training frontline staff and personalised support for citizens.
The performance indicator of Council Tax Reduction (CTR) speed of processing and average time for processing new claims is below the target, this is due to the decision to use the Universal Credit information as the claim for CTR with the aim of maximising the period we can award the CTR. This decline in performance will not impact on the well-being objective, as the applicant is better off as we are implementing more CTR for those who apply for it when they are receiving UC. 
The number of accredited qualifications achieved by adults with local Authority support has exceeded the target. This is due to the delivery of a comprehensive sector specific training programme which many employability programme participants have accessed, including health and social care, site security, construction and customer care. The partnership working between Swansea Working, Lifelong Learning, employability programmes and partners has led to greater attendance and achievement of accredited training and qualifications. Additional training and work experience opportunities are being developed with the art, culture and heritage partners which is supporting the steps to meet the well-being objective and will boost skills, confidence, self-esteem and aspiration. 
Planned developments that will help us meet the Well-being Objective include the continued work of the corporate cross directorate Poverty Forum with actions including our approach to managing personal debts to the council, reducing evictions and reducing barriers to services due to income poverty. The well attended Poverty Partnership Forum continues to develop and deliver initiatives to tackle poverty including entrepreneurship support, focus on food poverty and coordinated crisis support. 
Commissioning reviews focused on Financial Inclusion and Employability Support have started to determine the future shape and delivery of support to ensure that services are targeting the most vulnerable, outcomes are maximised and that we are supporting citizens out of poverty.  
�


Tackling Poverty 17-22

8 abed

Performance against Target
2019/2020 Quarter 2

GREEN-4

Performance compared to same Period of previous
year

2019/2020 Quarter 2

IMPROVING-2

DECLINING-6


Gordon.Wright�_425
Square


Gordon.Wright�_426
Square


Gordon.Wright�_427
Square



Tackling Poverty 17-22

Performance Indicator

HBCTO1a &

Housing Benefit Speed of Processing: Average time
for processing new claims.

HBCTO1a LOW is Good
5
gl el ol Rl R el ol Rl ) ) ol Rl el e
S|&|&8|c|g|g|lg|lg|g|lg|g|g|g|g|g|a
p 201617 201718 2018/19 2019/20
(0]
[o¢]
ABCTO1b &
Housing Benefit Speed of Processing: Average time
for processing notifications of change in
circumstances.
HBCTO1b LOW is Good
10
8
aaaaaaaaaaaaaa nrr‘
E
4
2 | ﬂ ﬂ ﬂ -
0
o el enEe(w|n|E IR |R|R|E
5| &|&|5|o|o|o|o|5|o|g|a|g|g|g|8
201617 201718 2018/19 2019/20

KEY

RAG

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

2017/2018 Quarter 2

GREEN

16.58

18.00

DECLINING

2018/2019 Quarter 2

GREEN

12.85

18.00

IMPROVING

2019/2020 Quarter 2

Y
m
@)

16.00

DECLINING

Comment-2019/2020

Drop in performance as
expected due to reduced
resources and because the more
complex cases remain in HB and
51.7% "easier’ cases transfer to

Universal Credit.

-11.1%

24160

1457

8338

649.

8.00

IMPROVING

55156

12017

8.00

DECLINING

57762

8492

9746

500.

AMBER

7.18

7.00

DECLINING

49057

6828

+16.9%

-23.0%

A minor dip in performance as

expected due to reduced

resources. Just above target
+5.6%

-12.5%

-15.1%

-19.6%


Gordon.Wright_1
FreeText
"�

Gordon.Wright�_428
FreeText
"�

Gordon.Wright�_429
Square


Gordon.Wright�_430
Square
+51.7%�

Gordon.Wright�_431
Square
-11.1%�

Gordon.Wright�_432
Square
+16.9%�

Gordon.Wright�_433
Square
-23.0%�

Gordon.Wright�_434
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_435
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_436
Square
+5.6%�

Gordon.Wright�_437
Square
-12.5%�

Gordon.Wright�_438
Square
-15.1%�

Gordon.Wright�_439
Square
-19.6%�

Gordon.Wright�_440
Square


gordon.wright�_3
Square


gordon.wright�_4
Square


gordon.wright�_5
Square


gordon.wright�_6
Square


gordon.wright�_7
Square


gordon.wright�_8
Square


gordon.wright�_9
Square


gordon.wright�_10
Square


gordon.wright�_11
Square


gordon.wright�_12
Square


gordon.wright�_13
Square


gordon.wright�_14
Square


gordon.wright�_15
Square



Tackling Poverty 17-22

Performance Indicator

HBCT02a &

Council Tax Reduction Speed of Processing:
Average time for processing new claims.

g HBCT2a LOW is Good
L o 1 Pe— - =, B
ml i «
15 1 = -
10 . o
51 — L
0
ZEPIE(C|D|R(E(T|IY|R[(E(|TD
S|&|8|g|g|glg|E|g|5|8l8| T
2016/17 2017/18 3012/15 5018/20
D fi
o]
(o]
HBCTO2b &

Council Tax Reduction Speed of Processing:

Average time for processing notifications of change

in circumstances.

HBCTO2b LOW is Good

10

3

E

4 _

7 | I

0
AR R R R LA A A KR IR Rl
o|lo|lo|lo|o|o| o\ o|o|la|a|la|a|la|lala
201617 201718 2018/19 2013/20

KEY

RAG

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

RAG

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

2017/2018 Quarter 2

AMBER

18.76

18.00

DECLINING

27780

1481

GREEN

3.90

8.00

IMPROVING

66242

16989

2018/2019 Quarter 2

AMBER

18.30

18.00

IMPROVING

23017

1258

GREEN

4.59

8.00

DECLINING

70226

15287

RED

26.50

18.00

DECLINING

43843

1656

GREEN

5.60

7.00

DECLINING

78724

14162

2019/2020 Quarter 2

+44.7%

+90.5%

+31.6%

+21.0%

-12.5%

+12.1%

-71.4%

Comment-2019/2020

As expected, performance has
dipped due to a process change
which increases the CTR
granted to individuals at the cost
of an apparent decrease in
performance stats. In reality, no
worsening of the service to
applicants.

Small dip in performance
expected due to reduced
resources but still under target


Gordon.Wright�_441
Square


Gordon.Wright�_442
Square


Gordon.Wright�_443
Square


Gordon.Wright�_444
Square


Gordon.Wright�_445
Square


Gordon.Wright�_446
Square


Gordon.Wright�_447
Square


Gordon.Wright�_448
Square


Gordon.Wright�_449
Square


Gordon.Wright�_450
Square


Gordon.Wright�_451
Square


Gordon.Wright�_452
Square


Gordon.Wright�_453
Square
+44.7%�

Gordon.Wright�_454
Square
+90.5%�

Gordon.Wright�_455
Square
+31.6%�

Gordon.Wright�_456
Square
+21.0%�

Gordon.Wright�_457
Square
+12.1%�

Gordon.Wright�_458
Square
-12.5%�

Gordon.Wright�_459
Square
-7.4%�

Gordon.Wright�_460
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_461
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_462
Square



Tackling Poverty 17-22

Performance Indicator

POVO5 ©

The amount of welfare benefits raised through
securing rights and entitlements by the Welfare
Rights Team (£)

POVOS HIGH is Good

b LA A A A el A R R s
== I E I E I E E
201617 017/18 | 2018/19 2019/20

(0]

(o]

\l

POV06 &

The average number of days all homeless families
with children spent in Bed and Breakfast
accommodation

POVDE LOW is Good

2016/17 2017/18 2018/13 2013/20

KEY

RAG

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

RAG

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

2017/2018 Quarter 2

GREEN
297392.00

200000.00

IMPROVING

297392.00

GREEN

6.00

IMPROVING

2018/2019 Quarter 2

GREEN
284168.00

200000.00

DECLINING

284168.47

GREEN

1.50

6.00

DECLINING

2019/2020 Quarter 2

GREEN
rates on appeals.
446469.10 57.1%

175000.00

-12.5%

IMPROVING

446469.10

GREEN

2.00

5.00

+33.3%

-16.7%

DECLINING

+100%

+50.0%

Comment-2019/2020

The benefits figure is significantly
higher than anticipated and we
have achieved 96% success

no alternative emergency
accommodation available as
families had presented in crisis
on the day with no scope for
prevention work to be carried
out.


Gordon.Wright�_463
Square


Gordon.Wright�_464
Square


Gordon.Wright�_465
Square


Gordon.Wright�_466
Square


Gordon.Wright�_467
Square


Gordon.Wright�_468
Square


Gordon.Wright�_469
Square
+57.1%�

Gordon.Wright�_470
Square
-12.5%�

Gordon.Wright�_471
Square
+33.3%�

Gordon.Wright�_472
Square
-16.7%�

Gordon.Wright�_473
Square
+100%�

Gordon.Wright�_474
Square
+50.0%�

gordon.wright�_16
FreeText
(£)�

Gordon.Wright�_475
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_476
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_477
Square



Tackling Poverty 17-22

Performance Indicator

POV10 ©

Number of people gaining employment through
Employability Support

POV1O High iz Good
150
100 -
BO -
0 4
0]
(0]
POV1I1 ©

Number of accredited qualifications achieved by
adults with local Authority support

POV11 HIGH iz Good

KEY

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

RAG

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

2017/2018 Quarter 2

2018/2019 Quarter 2

RED
125
No Data

89

RED
181

250

No Data

181

2019/2020 Quarter 2

RED

8

I

125

DECLINING

81

GREEN

354

250

IMPROVING

354

-9.0%

95.6%

Comment-2019/2020

Quarter 2 incorporates a
seasonal downturn in recruitment
drives. Engagement from
participants drops off due to
school holidays and therefore
employment outcomes are
affected. There has been a
8.91% increase on the Quarter 1
figure.

The improvement this quarter is
due to the delivery of a
comprehensive sector specific
training programme which many
employability programmes have
accessed. The partnership
developed between Swansea
Working, Lifelong Learning,
partners and employability
programmes has led to greater
attendance and achievement of
relevant accredited training and
qualifications.


Gordon.Wright�_478
Square


Gordon.Wright�_479
Square


Gordon.Wright�_480
Square


Gordon.Wright�_481
Square


Gordon.Wright�_482
Square


Gordon.Wright�_483
Square


Gordon.Wright�_484
Square


Gordon.Wright�_485
Square


Gordon.Wright�_486
Square


Gordon.Wright�_487
Square


Gordon.Wright�_488
Square


Gordon.Wright�_489
Square


Gordon.Wright�_490
Square
-9.0%�

Gordon.Wright�_491
Square
+95.6%�

Gordon.Wright�_492
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_493
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_494
Square



Transformation & Future Council 17-22

Progress continues towards delivering the well-being objectives contained within the Council's Corporate Plan. One of the key priorities this quarter has involved
the annual budget and in parallel the review of the Sustainable Swansea programme. The future financial picture continues to be challenging, therefore the
transformation of services remains a priority, particularly enabled by digital technology.

A new Digital Inclusion Strategy has been developed in addition to a revised Digital Strategy. This is the bedrock for modernising services, introducing new ways
of working and transforming the Council. As seen this quarter with the Cust 2a and b indicators, public take-up of online channels continues to grow as more online
services and digital processes are added to the Council's website.

A significant amount of Brexit preparation has also been undertaken this quarter and the Council now has high assurance of its position in the event of a 'no deal'
scenario.

The Co-production Strategic Framework and revised Consultation & Engagement Strategy were discussed at the Policy Development Committee. These will be
taken forward for implementation including guidance and toolkits for staff looking to co-design and co-produce services with the public, partners and other key
stakeholders.

The Organisational Development Strategy objectives continue to be delivered including Leadership development opportunities for all employees wherever they
may be in the organisation.

Y
Be Council has also developed an action plan to deliver the recommendations proposed by the Scrutiny Inquiry into Equalities. Many of the actions involve tasks
which work in partnership alongside the equality forums.

O

This quarter the agile working zones were adapted to include a Welsh speaking area as well as encouraging all staff to communicate in Welsh. Welsh language
training continues to be a priority.

Staff sickness continues to be high across the Council as reflected in the PAM001 indicator. Management measures are in place to work with Services on an
individual basis as well as reviewing the overall Policy. Other projects are also in flight which may positively impact sickness, modernising services and ways of
working which support staff.

The budget position of the Fina 6 indicator continues to be red. Reiterating the comment above, CMT continues with the expectation that both service and overall
net expenditure must be held within the relevant limits of the current year budget as set by Council. There is still an urgent need to identify and implement existing
and additional budget savings across all Council Services to improve the 19/20 position and beyond. However, there remains a degree of confidence that some
further inroads can be made into the forecast overspend by ongoing management and Cabinet action.


Gordon.Wright�_495
Square



Transformation & Future Council 17-22

Performance against Target Performance compared to same Period of previous
2019/2020 Quarter 2 year
2019/2020 Quarter 2

IMPROVING-2

06 abed

e DECLINING-2
GREEN-3

STATIC-1


Gordon.Wright�_496
Square


Gordon.Wright�_497
Square


gordon.wright�_17
Square


gordon.wright�_18
Square
STATIC-1�

gordon.wright�_19
Circle


Gordon.Wright�_498
Square



Transformation & Future Council 17-22

Performance Indicator KEY 2017/2018 Quarter2  2018/2019 Quarter2  2019/2020 Quarter 2 Comment-2019/2020
CHRO002 (PAMO001) & Note from Corporate
The number of working days/shifts per full time RAG AMBER GREEN RED Performance Team - Data
equivalent lost due to sickness absence quality under review. We are

currently in consultation with
Result 2.03 2.29 Trade Unions in respect of a new

+49.6%

CHROOZ LOW is Good Management of Attendance
Policy. Proposals have also
Target 2.00 2.50 2.50
] been submitted to CMT for
targetted objectives to reduce

Trend IMPROVING DECLINING DECLINING sickness across Directorates in
the longer-term. Flexible working

pilots have seen a reductionin
Num 18444.13 20644.32 30427.50 +47.4% sickness absence in pilot areas.
HR&OD are piloting specific

support for areas of high
Den 9097.89 9008.00 8874.26 -1.5%  sickness. Consideration being

201&/17 2017/18 2018/19 ,
- given to to external support for
Q sickness absence management
in Education.
CUST2a © The overall web payment figure
Number of online payments received via City and RAG GREEN GREEN GREEN has grown compared with Q2
County of Swansea websites last year, with the rise in
, bespoke website payments
Result 18825 23027 25121 +¥9.1% especially in high volume areas
CUST2a HIGH is Good like Lifelong Learning. This year
50,000 Target 18650 18900 23040 +21.99, 18 followed the seasonal
I pattern of Q2 having fewer
40,000

! payments than Q1, which is

0,000 5 Trend DECLINING IMPROVING IMPROVING natural given the timing of
5 _ ; ke Council Tax statements being

20,000
posted.
10,000 Num 18825 23027 25121
o L
AR R Al il Rl Kl s R R el Rl AR
[ o s o O o s s e e e e e o Den
2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20



Gordon.Wright�_499
Square


Gordon.Wright�_500
Square


Gordon.Wright�_501
Square


Gordon.Wright�_502
Square


Gordon.Wright�_503
Square


Gordon.Wright�_504
Square


Gordon.Wright�_505
Square


Gordon.Wright�_506
Square


Gordon.Wright�_507
Square


Gordon.Wright�_508
Square
+47.4%�

Gordon.Wright�_509
Square
+49.6%�

Gordon.Wright�_510
Square
-1.5%�

Gordon.Wright�_511
Square
+9.1%�

Gordon.Wright�_512
Square
+21.9%�

Gordon.Wright�_513
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_514
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_515
Square



Transformation & Future Council 17-22

Performance Indicator

CUST2b @

Number of forms completed online for fully automated
processes.

CUST2b HIGH is Good
10,000

5,000

£,000

4,000 B

"

2

2,000 - H H

T(H|TE
| | |
o|o|o|o

¢ 2016/17 2017,/18

©
N

FINAG ©

Percentage of identified forecast General Fund
Revenue savings and income for the year compared
to originally approved budget (A£000's)

FINAG HIGH is Good
100%
75%
o -
25% -
o -
2016/17

KEY

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

RAG

Result

Target

Trend

Num

Den

2017/2018 Quarter 2

GREEN

4455

3700

IMPROVING

4455

65.62%

Y]
m
O

90.00%

DECLINING

12288

18727

)
m
O

2018/2019 Quarter2  2019/2020 Quarter 2 Comment-2019/2020
The number of online waste
AMBER GREEN requests have continued to rise,
with over a third of the request
now online and going directly to
5140 9465 +84.1% the back office.
5250 5250

IMPROVING IMPROVING

5140 9465

CMT continues with expectation
=) that both service and overall net
expenditure must be held within
the relevant limits of the current
year budget as set by Council.
There is stillan urgent need to
identify and implement existing
and additional budget savings
across all Council Services to
improve the 19/20 position and
beyond. There remains a degree
of confidence that some further

82.43% 80.13% -2.8%

90.00% 90.00%

IMPROVING DECLINING

13626 10129 -25.7% inroads can be made into the
forecast overspend by ongoing
management and Member

16530 12640 -23.5%

action.


Gordon.Wright�_516
Square


Gordon.Wright�_517
Square


Gordon.Wright�_518
Square


Gordon.Wright�_519
Square


Gordon.Wright�_520
Square


Gordon.Wright�_521
Square


Gordon.Wright�_522
Square


Gordon.Wright�_523
Square


Gordon.Wright�_524
Square


Gordon.Wright�_525
Square


Gordon.Wright�_526
Square


Gordon.Wright�_527
Square


Gordon.Wright�_528
Square


Gordon.Wright�_529
Square


Gordon.Wright�_530
Square


Gordon.Wright�_531
Square
+84.1%�

Gordon.Wright�_532
Square
-2.8%�

Gordon.Wright�_533
Square
-25.7%�

Gordon.Wright�_534
Square
-23.5%�

Gordon.Wright�_535
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_536
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_537
Square



Performance Indicator KEY 2017/2018 Quarter 2 2018/2019 Quarter2  2019/2020 Quarter 2 Comment-2019/2020

PROC12 &
Number of data breaches which has resulted in an RAG GREEN GREEN

enforcement or monetary penalty notice being issued

by the Information Commissioners Office (ICO) Result _ -

.
NO GRAPH DISPLAYED arget 0 0
Trend No Data STATIC
Num 0 0]
Den

£6 abed


Gordon.Wright�_538
Square


Gordon.Wright�_539
Square


Gordon.Wright�_540
Square


Gordon.Wright�_541
Square


Gordon.Wright�_542
Square


Gordon.Wright�_543
Square


Gordon.Wright_2
FreeText
NO GRAPH DISPLAYED�

Gordon.Wright�_544
Square



Nature & Biodiversity 19-22

80% of Swansea is green space and is extremely diverse with over 50% of the County having significant ecological value. Although there is protection for the
environment via a range of site designations and legislation, biodiversity loss and species extinction is a challenge and a risk, and more awareness raising is
needed.

Recent legislation such as the Resilient Wales Goal in the Well-being of Future Generations Act 2015 and the Environment (Wales) Act 2016 requires specific
actions by the Council to embed biodiversity into decision making at all levels to support resilient ecosystems and well-being. It is part of a cultural change that
is needed for the decline in biodiversity to be reversed

Swansea Council are one of the lead local authorities in Wales in relation to natural environment maintenance and enhancement. There is a Working with
Nature objective within the Public Services Board Well-being Plan, a new biodiversity Corporate Objective in the Corporate Plan and a Climate Emergency has
been declared. A Natural Environment Scrutiny Performance Panel has also been set up to monitor and contribute to issues around biodiversity.

In July 2019 a Natural Environment Scrutiny Inquiry into ‘What Swansea Council should do to maintain and enhance its natural environment and biodiversity,
and, in so doing, promote the resilience of ecosystems’ made a number of recommendations to raise the profile of biodiversity both within and outside the
Council and these have been incorporated into an Action Plan which is in the process of being implemented.

Delivery of the Council’s Corporate Biodiversity Objective and the preparation of the Council’s statutorily required Section 6 Biodiversity Duty Action Plan (due
for publication in Dec 2019) is overseen by a corporate biodiversity working group established in response to the Scrutiny Inquiry. This group will help to
ensure that biodiversity is integrated into daily business operations and provide a vehicle for awareness raising and capacity building; cascading information
at;ﬂd best practice to all service delivery teams and for exploring and testing new approaches to delivering the sustainable management of natural resources.
I@plementation of certain planned project work this year, such as mapping Green Infrastructure assets and biodiversity audits of Council owned land, has
Been delayed due to withdrawal of specific grant funding for 19/20, however it is anticipated that funding for these projects will be available for 20/21.

The Council has been congratulated by Welsh Government for its successful enforcement of environmental protection legislation by prosecuting the developer
and contractor responsible for the felling of trees at Penllergaer in breach of a tree preservation order. The fines totalling over £400,000 are amongst the
highest ever imposed for this type of offence.

Tree and woodland planting proposals have been progressed with around 450 trees and 5300 whips planted on Council owned land over the past year. Over
350 more trees are scheduled to be planted over the course of the next 6 months. Whilst a successful bid for a Glastir woodland creation programme will
involve planting over 12,500 whips covering 5 hectares over the course of the next 5 years.

A Green Infrastructure Strategy for the City Centre - Swansea Central Area: Regenerating our City for Wellbeing and Wildlife has been drafted in partnership
with NRW and is subject of ongoing public consultation with a view to adoption early 2020. This will be complemented by a future Green Infrastructure Strategy
for the County and Supplementary Planning Guidance on Biodiversity which will seek to ensure that development proposals maintain and enhance the
County’s biodiversity.

The percentage of municipal waste recycled has continued to increase and now exceeds identified targets, reflecting the success of the Council’s recent
recycling campaign.


Gordon.Wright�_545
Square


Gordon.Wright�_546
Square
80% of Swansea is green space and is extremely diverse with over 50% of the County having significant ecological value. Although there is protection for the environment via a range of site designations and legislation, biodiversity loss and species extinction is a challenge and a risk, and more awareness raising is needed.
Recent legislation such as the Resilient Wales Goal in the Well-being of Future Generations Act 2015 and the Environment (Wales) Act 2016 requires specific actions by the Council to embed biodiversity into decision making at all levels to support resilient ecosystems and well-being. It is part of a cultural change that is needed for the decline in biodiversity to be reversed
Swansea Council are one of the lead local authorities in Wales in relation to natural environment maintenance and enhancement. There is a Working with Nature objective within the Public Services Board Well-being Plan, a new biodiversity Corporate Objective in the Corporate Plan and a Climate Emergency has been declared. A Natural Environment Scrutiny Performance Panel has also been set up to monitor and contribute to issues around biodiversity.
In July 2019 a Natural Environment Scrutiny Inquiry into ‘What Swansea Council should do to maintain and enhance its natural environment and biodiversity, and, in so doing, promote the resilience of ecosystems’ made a number of recommendations to raise the profile of biodiversity both within and outside the Council and these have been incorporated into an Action Plan which is in the process of being implemented. 
Delivery of the Council’s Corporate Biodiversity Objective and the preparation of the Council’s statutorily required Section 6 Biodiversity Duty Action Plan (due for publication in Dec 2019) is overseen by a corporate biodiversity working group established in response to the Scrutiny Inquiry. This group will help to ensure that biodiversity is integrated into daily business operations and provide a vehicle for awareness raising and capacity building; cascading information and best practice to all service delivery teams and for exploring and testing new approaches to delivering the sustainable management of natural resources. 
Implementation of certain planned project work this year, such as mapping Green Infrastructure assets and biodiversity audits of Council owned land, has been delayed due to withdrawal of specific grant funding for 19/20, however it is anticipated that funding for these projects will be available for 20/21.
The Council has been congratulated by Welsh Government for its successful enforcement of environmental protection legislation by prosecuting the developer and contractor responsible for the felling of trees at Penllergaer in breach of a tree preservation order. The fines totalling over £400,000 are amongst the highest ever imposed for this type of offence. 
Tree and woodland planting proposals have been progressed with around 450 trees and 5300 whips planted on Council owned land over the past year. Over 350 more trees are scheduled to be planted over the course of the next 6 months. Whilst a successful bid for a Glastir woodland creation programme will involve planting over 12,500 whips covering 5 hectares over the course of the next 5 years.
A Green Infrastructure Strategy for the City Centre - Swansea Central Area: Regenerating our City for Wellbeing and Wildlife has been drafted in partnership with NRW and is subject of ongoing public consultation with a view to adoption early 2020. This will be complemented by a future Green Infrastructure Strategy for the County and Supplementary Planning Guidance on Biodiversity which will seek to ensure that development proposals maintain and enhance the County’s biodiversity.
The percentage of municipal waste recycled has continued to increase and now exceeds identified targets, reflecting the success of the Council’s recent recycling campaign. 
�

Gordon.Wright�_547
Circle


Gordon.Wright�_548
Square



G6 abed

Performance against Target
2019/2020 Quarter 2

GREEN-1
/

Performance compared to same Period of previous
Year

2019/2020 Quarter 2

\IMPROVING-1



gordon.wright�_20
Circle


gordon.wright�_21
Square
Performance against Target�

gordon.wright�_22
Square
2019/2020 Quarter 2�

gordon.wright�_23
Square


gordon.wright�_24
Square
GREEN-1�

gordon.wright�_25
Square
2019/2020 Quarter 2�

gordon.wright�_26
Square
Performance compared to same Period of previous�

gordon.wright�_27
Square
Year�

gordon.wright�_28
Circle


gordon.wright�_29
Square


gordon.wright�_30
Square
IMPROVING-1�

gordon.wright�_31
Line


gordon.wright�_32
Line


Gordon.Wright�_549
Square



Performance Indicator KEY 2017/2018 Quarter 2 2018/2019 Quarter 2 2019/2020 Quarter 2 Comment-2019/2020

WMTO009b (PAM030) €

The percentage of municipal waste collected by local RAG GREEN
authorities and prepared for reuse and/or recycled,
including source segregated biowastes that are

The figures reported are one quarter in
GREEN GREEN arrears as previously reported. i.e. the
figures relate to Q1 2019/20

429 759 629 2.8%
composted or treated biologically in another way Result of42% 09:15% S *
WMTOI9 b HIGH is Good
Target 60.00% 63.00% 66.50% +6.2%
B53%, ]
- Trend DECLINING IMPROVING IMPROVING
G5% -
Num 18729.80 19713.52 19211.02 -2.5%
G
oW E WinE
&|5|5|5 5|55 Den 29074.45 29983.07 28409.69 -5.2%
¢ 2016/17 2017/18 2019/20



Gordon.Wright�_550
Square
+2.8%�

Gordon.Wright�_551
Square
+6.2%�

Gordon.Wright�_552
Square
-2.5%�

Gordon.Wright�_553
Square
-5.2%�

gordon.wright
Square

 
 
 
�

Gordon.Wright�_554
Stamp


Gordon.Wright�_555
Square



Agenda Item 7

Service Improvement and Finance Work Plan 2019-20

Meeting 1
24 June 2019

1. Re-election of Convener
e Bethan Hopkins — Scrutiny Officer
2. Terms of Reference
e Panel Convener
3. WAO Report — Local Government Data Use
e CllIr Clive Lloyd — Cabinet Member for Business
Transformation & Performance
e Sarah Caulkin — Chief Transformation Officer
4. End of Year Review
e Panel Convener
5. Work Plan 2019/20

Meeting 2 Cancelled
22" July 2019
Meeting 3 1. End of Year 2018/19 Performance Monitoring Report
19" August 2019 e Richard Rowlands — Corporate Performance Manager
e CllIr Clive Lloyd — Cabinet Member for Business
Transformation and Performance
2. Q1 Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring 2019/20
e Ben Smith — Head of Financial Services and Service
Centre
3. Revenue Outturn and Savings Tracker 2018/19
e Ben Smith — Head of Financial Services and Service
Centre
4. Revenue Outturn 2018/19 (HRA)
e Ben Smith — Head of Financial Services and Service
Centre
5. Capital Outturn and Financing 2018/19
e Ben Smith — Head of Financial Services and Service
Centre
Meeting 4 1. Archives
16" September 2019 e Tracey McNulty — Head of Cultural Services
e ClIr Robert Francis-Davies — Cabinet Member for
Investment, Regeneration and Tourism
2. Charges Item
e Chris Williams — Head of Commercial Services
e Cllr Clive Lloyd — Cabinet Member for Business
Transformation and Performance
Meeting 5 1. Reserve Update
21° October 2019 e Jeff Dong — Deputy Chief Finance and Deputy 151

Officer
2. Recycling and Landfill - Annual Performance Monitoring
2018/19
e Chris Howell — Head of Waste Management and Parks
e Cllr Mark Thomas — Cabinet Member for Environment
and Infrastructure Management
3. Q1 Performance Monitoring Report 2019/20
e Richard Rowlands — Corporate Performance Manager
e CllIr Clive Lloyd — Cabinet Member fir Business
Transformation and Performance

Page 97




Meeting 7
9t December 2019

1. Mid-Year Budget Statement 2019/20
e Ben Smith — Head of Financial Services and Service
Centre
2. Q2 Budget Monitoring 2019/20
e Ben Smith — Head of Financial Services and Service
Centre
3. Planning Annual Performance Report 2018/19 and
Response to WAO Report
e Ryan Thomas - Development Conservation and Design
Manager
e Cllr David Hopkins — Cabinet Member for Delivery

Meeting 8
20" January 2020

1. Q2 Performance Monitoring Report 2019/20
e Richard Rowlands — Corporate Performance Manager
e Clir Clive Lloyd — Cabinet Member fir Business
Transformation and Performance
. Budget Proposals
e Ben Smith — Head of Financial Services and Service
Centre

N

Budget Meeting 9
26" February 2020 (tentative)

1. Sustainable Swansea - Fit for the Future: Budget
Proposals 2020/21 — 2023/24 - pre-decison
e Ben Smith — Head of Financial Services Service Centre
e Cllr Rob Stewart — Cabinet Member for Economy and
Strategy

Meeting 10
2" March 2020

1. Corporate Complaints Annual Report 2018/19
e Julie Nicholas Humphreys - Customer Services Manager
e CllIr Clive Lloyd — Cabinet Member for Business
Transformation and Performance
2. Q3 Budget Monitoring 2019/20
Ben Smith — Head of Financial Services and Service Centre
3. Wales Audit Office Report on Local Government Use of
Data
Steve King — Information, Research & GIS Team Leader

Meeting 11
30™ March 2020

1. Welsh Public Library Standards Annual Report 2018/19
e Karen Gibbins - Principal Librarian for Information &
Learning
e Cllr Robert Francis Davies — Cabinet Member
Investment, Regeneration and Tourism
2. Q3 Performance Monitoring Report 2019/20
e Richard Rowlands — Corporate Performance Manager
e Clir Clive Lloyd — Cabinet Member fir Business
Transformation and Performance

Meeting 12
11* May 2020

1. Annual Review of Well-being Objectives and Corporate
Plan 2018/22
e Richard Rowlands — Corporate Performance Manager
e Cllr Rob Stewart — Cabinet Member for Economy and
Strategy

Also WAO Reports, Pre-Decision Items and Data Unit Wales — Local Government Performance

Bulletin

Page 98




	Agenda
	3 Minutes and Letters
	Letter - CM for Delivery and Performance 9 Dec.docx
	Minutes 9 Dec 19
	Minutes


	5 Sustainable Swansea - Fit for the Future: Budget Proposals 2020/21 – 2023/24
	6 Q2 2018/19 Performance Monitoring Report
	08 Q2 Append
	Corporate Performance Management Report Q2 2019/2020�
	Corporate Report Q2 2019-20 v2.pdf�
	Corporate Performance Management Report Q2 2019/2020�



	7 Work Plan 2019/2020

